Millersville Board of Commissioners
Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, May 15, 2018 @ 5:30 P.M. at City Hall
1. Call to Order.
2. Invocation and Pledge to the Flag.
3. PUBLIC HEARING on Ordinance 18-693, rezone 2044 Wilson Lane, Robertson County
Map 125, Parcel 226.00 from Residential R-1 and Commercial C-3 to Residential R-5 and

Commercial C-3.

a. Open Public Hearing.
b. Close Public Hearing.

4. Approval of minutes from the April 17, 2018 Regular Commission Meeting.
5. Approval of the April 2018 Financial Report.

6. Presentation of the 2016-17 Annual Financial Report by Karen Stephens, Blankenship CPA
Group.

7. Acceptance of the 2016-17 Annual Financial Report.
8. Second Reading of Ordinance 18-693, rezone 2044 Wilson Lane, Robertson County Map
125, Parcel 226.00 from Residential R-1 and Commercial C-3 to Residential R-5 and

Commercial C-3.

9. First Reading of Ordinance 18-694, provide for the election of two City Commissioners
on November 6, 2018.

10. First Reading of Ordinance 18-695, amend the 2017-18 Fiscal Year Budget Ordinance 17-
674 to provide for the purchase of equipment in the Fire Department and adjust the Debt Service

related to the Fire Engine Loan.

11. First Reading of Ordinance 18-696, rezone 7541 Darby Road, Sumner County Map 118,
Parcel 003.05, from Residential R-1 to R-3 and R-5.

12. Approval of Position and Job Description for a Building Inspector/Codes Official.
13. Direction to Staff related to the procedure for taking Codes Complaints.

14. Citizen Comments. (Limited to 3 minutes per speaker.)

15. City Manager Comments.

16. Commissioner Comments.

17. Adjournment.
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BALANCE SHEET
AS OF: APRIL 30TH, 2018
10 -General Fund
BALANCE
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 General Fund - Farmers Bk 165,615.38
1001 Reserve Fund MM-Farmers Bk 1,761,700.63
1004 Renew Crew - Farmers Bk 2,067.67
1009 Police Explorers - Farmers Bk 716.21
1010 Christmas For Kids-Farmers Bk 4,718.46
1012 Health Care Account-Farmers Bk 102,926.95
Total Checking/Savings 2,037,745.30
Current Assets
1013 General Escrow Acct-Farmers Bk 3,944.00
1110 Cash on Hand - Petty Cash 57.98
1111 Cash on Hand - Cash Drawers 300.00
1112 Petty Cash - PD 400.00
1113 Petty Cash - CCtr 115.00
1201 Allow for Bad Debts 26,150.75)
1205 Intergovermental Receivable 57,939.48
1210 Prop.Tax Receivable - Current 35,967.00
1211 Prop.Tax Receivable - Deling 47,891.02
1212 Prop.Tax Recvble-Next Yr Levy 853,455.00
1222 A/R-Other (Mowing/liens) 3,388.25
Total Current Assets 977,306.98
Total Current Assets 3,015,052.28
Other Assets
Transfers
1620 Due To / From Sewer Fund 69,119.76
1630 Due To / From Street Fund 50,879.33)
1640 Due To / From Solid Waste Fund 32,463.31
1650 Due To / From Drug Fund 2,099.57)
1660 Due To / From Stormwater Fund 18,025,57
Total Transfers 66,629.74
Total Other Assets 66,629.74
TOTAL ASSETS 3,081,682.02
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AS OF: APRIL 30TH, 2018
10 -General Fund
BALANCE
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
2000 Accounts Payable 102.50
2004 A/P-State Traffic Fines&Fees 6,774.48
2007 GF Escrow Pending Acct 3,944.00
2010 Renew Crew Donations 2,067.67
2012 Police Exp Donations 716.21
2014 Christmas For Kids Donations 4,718.46
2015 Healthcare EAP Account 102,913.53
2017 Ovrpmt-Court/to be refunded 2.50
2020 Deposit - Fire Hydrants 1,250.00
2022 Deposit - Comm.Ctr Rental 7,480.00
2110 Retirement - Employee 4,601.36
2114 MedChild - Employee 394.45)
2116 MedSpouse - Employee 73.72)
2118 MedFam - Employee 1,386.96
2124 DentalChild - Employee 52.60
2126 DentalSpouse - Emp 142.54)
2128 DentalFam - Employee 247.29
2130 Vision - Employee 146.79
2132 Vision & 1 - Employee 397.99
2134 VisionFam - Employee 81.59
2136 Heart - Employee 210.82
2138 Hospital - Employee 129.49)
2140 Accident - Employee 13.87
2142 Life Ins/LICOA - Emp 132.36
2143 Life Ins/CINC - Emp 9.10
2144 Cancer - Employee 4.84)
2148 Disability - Employee 437.03
2150 Pre-Paid Legal - Emp 522.29
2200 Deferred Revenue 853,455.00
Total Current Liabilities 990,919.36
Total Current Liabilities 890,919.36
Long Term Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES 990,919.36
Equity
2710 Fund Balance-Unreserved 588,831.77
2760 Fund Balance-Unassigned 1,588,945.28
Net Income 87,014.39)
Total Equity 2,090,762.66
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10 -General Fund

BALANCE

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,081,682.02




£0°1I9 87 69E'6ET 00°0 Z5°0£2'8T2 70 2L%'0E 009’LSE $®94 3 S°uTd 3IINOD TYLOL
09°%e 00" 0LL'E 00°0 00°0€C’T 000 000°S se93 @bexojg/morL dd ZZZE-OT
0S°I¥e (00°STIF’'T 00°0 00°STV‘Z 00 0ES 000°T asy3z0-3deq SOTTOd TZZE-OT
GL'6E SZ°09 00°0 GL 6E 0E"0 00T s3xodey ®OTTOd 022E-0T
0L Tge (L¥"928'T 00°0 LY S2E’E GL S9€ 00S'T S9UTJ JINOD “0D Uos3IIqod 90Ze-0T
€0'6%T (S0°2e¥’c 000 S0"2ZEV 0T VL PP T 000’L S8uTj 3INCD °"OD IBUUMS GOZE-O0T
2T LL 05°292’'Ss 000 0S"LEL'LT SZ2°91S6'2 000°‘€Z xel uoT3eBTITT 3INn0D A3TD ZOZE-OT
02" LS SZ°676'9€T 00°0 SL°0G0'€8T 00°STT'ST ooo’‘oze s3so) 3 seurd 3INoD A3TD 00ZE-O0T
sood 5 M@.ﬁ._.u.m JINOY
00°0 00°000°Se 00°0 00°0 00°0 000°‘se sexe] JO NSTT UT JuswiAegd TYLOL
00°0 00°000°S2 00°0 00°0 0070 000°‘se SeXe] JO NSTT UL ISMBS 660E-0T
saxBl JO NMaTT UT juswied
8T L8 82°925'08 00°0 2L ELE' LTS 0605919 006 ‘.29 xel 23238 TYIOL
TL'Z8 LZ 869'FT 00°0 €L TOE’' 0L LG°9GZ'8T 000°98 s3droosy SSoI9 VAL 9£0£-0T
gz'8Tz (20°6TP'T 00°0 206192 00°0 002'T xBL 9STOXH Jued SEQ0E-0T
0T°8ST (LS 8FE 00°0 LS 876 I1°2IT 009 X'l SUOTIBROTUNUWODSTSIL 933§ FEQE-0T
0z°€8 67°€E8T'2 00°0 IS°9T8°0T LO"T80'T 000‘€ET mmaToI3®g /399138 A3TD-93®3S £E0E-0T
16°96 S9°G6 0070 SE"v00’€E IS 8LE'T 00T‘€E xe], I99g 93©3S ZEOE-0T
00°0 (Lz €92's 00°0 LZ €92'6 00°0 0 (x2el s,TT®H) X®BL SWodul =3'3s TE0E-0T
6L°58 ELT6LS VL 00°0 LZ 02%7°'0S7¥ 79°228°'0% 000‘szZs Xe] S°®TB§ 23©23S_0E0E-0T
xXeI, 23e38
EL°9L IT 9LL'0ST 00°0 68 EZZ'L6F SE"¥S8'LS 000’'8%9 Xl TEOO0T TYIOL
00°'0 (65°220'¢2 00°0 65°z20’z ¥6 ' LEE 0 x2L TS3CK/T®30H 620E-0T
79°16 66 GES 00°0 TO %916 77 678 000'0T xel, xonbTT STESSTOUYM 8Z0£-0T
9T 26 9g€ 8L 00°0 ¥9°126 L6 EL 000°'T xeL 269TTATId I99€ LZOE-0T
€97 LE 7P 9T19°'ST 00°0 95°€8£°6 AR A A 000°s2 AatD-xe] sssutrsnd GZ0E-0T
85°26 I8°8L0 % 00°0 6T°1I26°08 ¥7°90T'2 000°’ss xel SSTYDuRII AL STIED E£Z0E-0T
80°28 GG ZLT'6T 00°0 S7 LZ8 LS 85°092'8 000‘LOT Xe] I99g STESSTOUM ZZ0E-0T
8€°€8 S0°G65°9¢ 00°0 S6° 707 ‘E€T LO"0ES'TT 000°0ST 3qoy - xBL SaTes Te20T TZ0E-0T
02" 0L 05" 127’98 00°0 05°8LS'€E0T 8€°"EST'¥E 000‘062 Isuums - XBL SSTBS TEBOOTI_0Z0£-0T
xBI, TE00T
76 0LS (B 9%S’EZ 00°0 ¥8°9¥%5'8¢ 02 LFE'T 000’S "burreqg - ¥er Ajzedoxd TVLIOL
2766 LO 62 00°0 €6°0L6'V 0z 91¢E 000°S xer Ajasdozg - 3sS°2I93UI GT0E-0T
00°0 (00°9%T’€ 00°0 00°9%T’'€E 00°LOT o butTeg - -"©oD uosijxeqod ZINE-0T
00°0 (16°627'02 00°0 16°62¥%'02 00°v2Z6 0 butTeg - "©D Isuuwng OTOE-0T
"butTeq - xer Ajz=adoag
S8°¥6 IL"S82'¥%¥ 00°0 62°692'918 00" 0EE’E 656098 juszan) - xel Ajxsdoxd TVIOL
¥1°G6 00°268°TT 00°0 00°0LL’ZEZ 00°09€'T z29s'vve JUSIIND - 0D uos3IASOA ZOOE-0T
7L 76 IL E6E’ZE 00°0 6C°66% ' €89 00°0LE'T £68'ST9 JuSIIND - 0D ISuumg DOOE-OT
juaxand - xel Ajaxadoxg
LIDANg HONYIVE EIEFEHNONE TYALOVY doITdgEd LEDANT SEHONTATI
aLX % LEDANG TY.LOL dALVJ OL ¥V¥dHX LNTEIND LNTIIND
€£°E8 OELETIIWOD ¥WYEX J0 %
pung TEaIsUSD- (OT
8T0Z 'HIOE TI¥aAY :d0 S¥Y
(QELIAN¥YNA) IMOdEE HESNEAXE 3 HANIATI
€ 1 EOVd FTIIASIITIIN 40 ALID WY 8E:TT 8T0Z-TI-S



¥E°89 9zZ'28£°'020'T 00°0 vL 6L0'Z0C'E 99 €E0’29T zov’zze’'e HEONIATI TYLOL
00°0 00°L06°T09 00°0 000 00°0 L06'T09 saegsueal TYIOL
00°'0 00°2Z8L'06€ 00°0 00°0 0070 Z8L°'06€E speenoId UBOT/AD-TBd PUnd woxd ZILE-OT
00°0 00°¥LS'S9 00°0 00°0 0070 7LS'S9 dxg z=do 31®913s5-TBd PUNd WOId TTLE-OT
00°0 00 TSS‘SFPT 00°0 00°0 00°0 TSS ‘ST pung JeIsusp-soueTed punjg woxig QTLE-OT
m.Hmmnm.ﬂ.NH_H.
¥L°06 ZS5°0TT’9 00°0 8% '688°‘65 90-zTZ’S 000‘99 snusasy ISY10 TYLOL
00°0 00°000°S 00°0 00°0 00°0 000°S spe=noxg 3jusid 009€-0T
00°T 00°0%6°S 00°0 00°09 00°0 000’9 sesd uorio=dsul SITd 0£SE-0T
88 2% 00°82%'T 00°0 00°2LO'T 00°0 005’2 sjusag TeToads§-I3D A3TUnUmO) $ZSE-O0T
2Z°66 00°S6T 00°0 00°S08°'¥%2 00°GLO'¥ 000‘se I93usS) AJTUNUMO) ZZSE-0T
00°0 (00" S¥% 00°0 00°S¥ 000 0 zoy30-3dag @ITd QTSE-0T
00°0 00°000°T 00°0 00°0 00°0 000'T UOT3ONY/SSINZTSS LOSE-0T
88°€9 S0"€06 00°0 G6°96G'T 000 005’2 (ucT3iony) s3=sSSY JO @TeS 90GE-OT
00°0 (To-zez’'s 00°0 T0°2ET’'6 00°0 0 SpeSD00Ig SDUBINSUI GQGE-O0T
IL 18 ¥1°628°'T 00°0 98°0LT'8 657629 000°0T swodul SNOPUBRTTEPSTH F0SE-0T
€1°8TT (90 SgL 00°0 90°G2L'¥ L% LOS 000'% sbuturey 3ssas3jul TOSE-OT
09°9L 00°0LT'T 00°0 00°0€8°‘€ 00°0 000’S seeg DButuoy 3 BuTuueld Q0SE-0T
50" LZT (09°2SE'T 00°0 09°2ZGE'9 00°0 000°S Z3d/se94 butaseutbug 66¥E-0T
SnusSASyY I=2U3Q
LZ"ETT  (00°9%0'% 00°0 00°9%S’'%E 00°L3T'Z 00G'0€E S3TWIDg 3 SSSUIDTT TYIOL
00" 8L 00°0TT 00°0 00 06€ 0059 00§ s3jTwxag uxng FO0EE-0T
ZS°0TT (00°9ST’E 0070 00°9GT’'EE 0072012 000°0€E s3Twzeg BuTpTTng ZOEE-0T
00'0 (00°000°T 00°0 00°000°T 00°0 0 ®Su=DTT I53d TOEE-0T
S3TWID ¥ SSSUBOTT
IEDand TONYIYL lafcesicizipinie)icy TYALOY aor¥dad LEodnd SENNTATI
aLX % LEDANG TYLOL HI¥Vd OL ¥Y¥dX LNETIOD LNETEND
£E"E8 QILITNOD I¥HA H0 %
Punyg TEI=2U=S9- (OT
8T0Z ‘HIOE TI¥AY :d0 SY
(QILIAOYNN) I90dHd HSNEIXE 3 HONFATS
¥ I EOVd HTTIASYETTIIN 40 ZIID WY BE:TT 8T0Z-TTI-S



LT 6S 17 2IE 762 00°0 65" LTS '92¥ 2GS EOL'ED 0E8’02L UOTIBIFSTUTWPY TYVIOL
8€°0S L% T68'822 00°0 £6°88€'ZET 6L 0ET’'¥Z 08Z‘T97% sosuadxd I9Y3Q TYIOL
00°0 00" ¥LS'S9 00°0 00°0 00°0 7LG GO xg xodp XOF) 3I®SIFS OL IIXL Z00L-0T¥-0T
IE'8T 05°508'26 0070 0§ v6L°0Z 00 GLE'ZT 008 ‘ETT sjusweaczdul BuTpTTng 0009-0T¥-0T
8€°VE oo-"sze’z 00°0 00 GLE'T 00°0 000’7 ButaTtpny 3 Burjunoooy STOF-0TI¥P-0T
I8°LS 00°9589°¢2T 0070 00" PYE'LT 00°265'2 000°'0€ seoTAI®s TebeT $T0P-0T%-0T
00°se 00°0SL’E 00°0 00°0S2'T 00°0SZ'T 000’s SOOTAISS TBUOTSSSI0Id 0007-0TP-0T
05°0ZT (00°%9T ) 0070 00" %96 00°LS 008 3qod-yo3eR ¥L A3xedoxd 0GLZ-0TF-0T
ET'60T (00°LET ) 0070 00" LE9'T 00°%2T 00S8’'T Teuumg-yo3eW ¥I A3zadoxd GyLZ-0IP-0T
00°00T 00°0 00°0 00°005°2 00°0 005’z suoT3BUOQ Q0LZ-0TF-0T
¥8°16 €T €9T 0070 LB 9EB'T 00°0 000‘z JUSWUTEIISIUE 3 STESH ZEEZ-0TV-0T
00°28 00°8T 00°0 00° 28 00°0 00T sjusumoog butpaoosd 9zZe£Z-0T7-0T
60" €Z 10°269°2 00°0 66°L08 00°0 00S'€E Tejusy sutyoel 3 =bejsog 91€Z-0T¥-0T
86" TI¥ TT V069 000 8L G66'F 9E "TLE 006'TT juswdrtnby IouTK ZTEZ-0T¥-0T
0L"86 Z6°se 0070 80 7L6'T €6 882 000’2 £Ipung /SNOSUBTT®OSTH 0TEZ-0T¥-0T
IS 2L 8B 6¥S 00°0 ZT 0S7'T TE" 28 oo0‘e sotT1ddns SOTIFO 20E£Z-0TP-0T
¥9°96 ¥SLIT 00°0 9v-Z8E’E TG 7TV 00S’€E sotTddns bBuriexado 00£2-0T¥-0T
06°2S gL LZV'0E 0070 82 8LI'¥E EE"CSV'E 90979 SeDTAXSS Ten3oBIjue) QTZZ-0TIF-0T
00°0 (50" 262 ) 0070 S0°Z62 00°0 0 sourusjuteN Ajxsdozg A3TD L0ZZ-0TF-0T
00° 2% 99°656'9 00°0 FET0%0'S GE'T6C 000°ZT sourusjuteN ¥ ITedsy BpTg 9022-0Tv-0T
0E" 8% 297 85¢ 0070 8% TVC 8% TO0T 008 souruslUTENRITEdSY STOTUSA Z0ZZ-0TI¥-0T
20706 9E"L60'T 000 ¥9°206'6 g1 582 000'TT seng ¥ s3draosqns’A3TOTTARd S0TZ-0TP-0OT
69762 €2 18¢ 00°0 LL™8TT 79°GZ 00¥ Tond T®s9Td ‘TTO ‘Se9 $0TZ-0T¥-0T
26768 99" %98 00°0 FPE'GEQ’'S LY 6%S 0os’s 3auasjurysuoydaTaL Z0TZ-0T¥V-0T
LY 08 LZ OTL'E 00°0 €L 682'ST 62°0€9°'T 000'6T SST3TITIN 00TZ2-0T7-0T
08°€0T (00°LOS’E ) 0070 00°L0¥ ‘86 00°0 008°'%6 ‘sur Ajxedoxg ¥ AITTTARTT 9T02-0T¥-0T
ST ZZT (g€ 661 ) 0070 ZE'660'T 0070 006 soueansul -dwod S,ISYIOM FTOZ-0TF-0T
€E0°0S zL'8ve'z 00°0 gz 1s¢’'ze 00°0%Z 005'% Bututesr 3 uOT3IBONPE g00T-0T7-0T
00°0 (05" 8€ET ) 00°0 0S"8€T 00'0 0 @susdxy TEOTPSW ISU30 0002-0T¥-0T
sasuadx® aI3Y30
60°G9 ZS°§5% ‘02 00°0 8% zEI1'8E 06 6E6'E 885’85 S3S0D TSUUOSISF ISYF0 TYLOL
82 TIL ST°SS 00°0 G8°9€T G8°9€ET Z6T soueansul FuswioTdwsun QOST-0T¥-0T
06 €L 92 TLS8 00°0 ¥LT99%'C €9°8952 8EE'E JuswSITISE 00FT-0TP-0T
78765 §9°SE6°ST 00°0 SE"8¥LEE 9T"gSe’‘e 789 ‘6E 9DURINSUT YIFTESH S2A0TAWE Q0ET-0T¥-0T
€9°9L 97 e€6S’¢c 00°0 7S 08L'TT 92°S6T'T PLE'ST 2I2OTPSW ® SS 00ZT-0IF-0T
s3s0) ToauuosIeagd I=aYJ0
29 LL 2% 596 '¥¥ 00°0 85966 'GST €8°2E9'ST 296 002 seTaeTes TYLOL
ZE"86 0G° 28 0070 05" LI8 ¥ 00°0 0067 Aeg AjtasbuoT gOTT-0TV-0T
05°€8 00°00T'¥% 00°0 00°0GL'02 00°050°'2 0s8’'veg uoTssTuO) A3TD - SOTIRTRS SOTT-0T¥-0T
SE'FPET (SL'TLI ) 0070 SLTLY 1" 70T 00S SAT3RIFSTUTWRY - SWTIISAO TOTT-0T¥-0T
T0°9L L9 75607 00°0 EELSL'6TT 69°8LY'ET ZIL'OLT SAT3BRIZSTUTWPY - SSTIBTES (Q0TT-0IV-0T
SOTIBTES
LIDANE HONYTIVH HIEENNDONE TYNLOY aqordgad LEDANg SHINLIANTAXHE TYININLIYAId
aLE % LEDANT TYLOL HLVd OL dY¥HX LINHTIND INTIIND
€L €8 QEITIAWOD ¥VIX J0 % UOTIBRIFSTUTUPY - INEWIIVAEd
puni TeasusdH- 0T
8102 ‘HILOE TI¥dY :d0 SV
(QIITANYNA) I¥O4HEY HSNIJXE 3 HONEAES
g 1 EDYd TTIIASSETIIN 0 XIID WY 8€:TT 8T0Z-TI-S



(o=t 4=1 Z2Z°68L'FE 0070 8L 8LY'T¥ 90°52%'v 89% ‘9L sepoD/BuTpTIng TYILOL
7L 92 £5°8L%'82 00°0 L 96E'0T 60°086 SL8'BE sesuadxy I9Y3lQ TYIOL
¥9°0 00°896'F% 00°0 00°Z¢ 00°0 0o00‘s SSOTAISS TRUOTSSSJOId 000%-TIP-OT
0T €2T (0S'STT 00°0 05°G19 00° 8% 00¢S suwrzozTun ¥ BUTY3OTD $2EZ-TIP-0OT
00°02 00°008 00°0 00° 002 00°0 000°T sbeisogd 9TEZ-TI¥P-0T
0E° 0% 76°067°'T 00°0 90°608'T 00°0 o00’€ Jusudtnby IOUTW ZIEZ-TTIFP-0T
00°0 00°000°'T 00°0 00°0 000 000'T Azpung /sSTosuUBTTSOSTH 0TEZ-TIV-0T
={=Rle} 4 IS 765 00°0 67 °S0¥% 85°56 000°T setTddns ®0TFIFO ZOEZ-TTIP-0T
L8 0T 89°z8L'T 00°0 ZE'LIZ 00°'0 ooo‘e set1ddng Bur3zezsdo 00£2-II¥-0T
9T 0F 0S°LL9’8 00°0 05°228’S 00°S2S 00S5'%T SSOTAISS TEBNAORIZUOD (0IZZ-TII¥V-0T
00°'0 00°000'2 00°0 00°0 00°0 000‘z SouBUSIUTENZITRdSY STOTUYSA 202Z-TT¥-0T
SL'Z 00°G¥6°'T 00°0 00°95 00°0 000‘2 engzsucTtidrIosqng A3 TOTTIRd 90TZ-TTIVP-0T
80 €% 91" 695 00°0 78 0¥ €L 9L 000°T ITO 3 Sed F0TZ-TI7-0T
L6 8S 8% GT9 00°0 25 ¥88 8L 6%T 00S'T 3suxsjul /ouoydsTaL Z0TZ-TTF-0T
€27 9L G6L'T 00°0 vZ 6L 00°0 SL8°'T soueansul dwod'M FT0Z-TT7-0T
08¢ 00"gsg’‘z 00°0 00°S¥T 00" SL 00s‘z Bututeay 3 uoT3i=ONPE Z00Z-TI¥-0T
sosuadxy IsUl0
85 6L £2-2s9°'z2 00°0 LL 902’8 L6 ¥88 658°0T s3s0) TPUUOSISg ISYIO TYIOL
0S° L8 00°9 00°0 00 2% 00°2¥% 8% ‘sur juswlordwsun QOST-TI?P-0T
9L" %S 86 °95¢ 00°0 Z20°2c¥ 20°g9 68L jusweaTi=S Q0¥ T-TIFP-0T
8T %L 89°1I80°'2 00°0 ZE'6LE'S TT 265 I90°‘8 soueansul Yy3jTesH =2AoTdwd Q0EI-TIF-0T
Zv°68 LS LOZ 00°0 EVESL'T 78°G6T 196°'T SIBOTPSHW 3 SS 00ZT-TII¥-0T
S3S0D TRuuosIsdgd I3yl
Z2E"98 9% 8G9 °'€ 00°0 ¥S GLO’'EE 00°096'¢2 PEL'SE seTIeTRS TYIOL
009 00°GE 00°0 00569 000 00T Keg AjtasbuoT OTT-TIP-0OT
9T %2 6E"8SL 00°0 19 172 00°0 000°'T sepon/BbpT1E - swr3I=A0 TQTT-TIFV-0T
28°88 L0"g98°'2 00°0 €6°89L'¢2e 00°09S‘2 ¥€9'Se sepo)/bp1d - seTaeTesS 00TT-LIF-0T
mm.ﬂH.m._”.mm.
LEDANG I ETNNDNE TTYOLOY aordgid LE2and SHENLIANEAXH TVILNIALIYdId
dLE % TYLOL HILYd OL d9Y¥dEX LNEIIND LNTETIND

€E°E8 JELITAWOD ¥VHZ J0 %

9 fEDVd

8T0Z 'HLOE TI¥aY
(QELIANYNA) IH0dTE ESNIAXE 3 ANNIATI

HTIIASEETIIN J0 ALID

d0 SY

sepo)/BUTPTIng - INEWINYdZd
pung TRIdUa9- QT

WY BE-TT BTO0C-TTI-S



0E"LL €9°2¥0°'2T 00°0 L% S00'T¥ IS PES'F 8%0°'€ES 3ano) TedIDTUny TYLOL
PGS LL ¥1°250'2 00°0 98°280°L £0°0LT'T GET'6 sesusadxy I9UY30 TYLOL
EE"E8 00°000°T 00°0 00°000°'S 00°000°T 000’9 abpnpe A3TD FTI0¥-2TP-0T
00°0 (00-00T 00°0 00°00T 00°00T 0 SODTAIDS TRUOTSSDI0Id 000%-ZTP-0T
88°8 9E"ELZ 0070 ¥9-9¢2 00°0 00€E seTTddns =0TIFO Z0£Z-2TP-0T
2z 08 96 9%¥ 00°0 FO'EI8'T 00°0 092’z setTddng bBuriexado 00£Z-2IP-0T
S0° LB TL'6 00°0 62°G9 00°0 SL soueansul dwoD M $I0Z-2Iv-0T
8BS ST LT ey 00°0 68" LL £0° 0L 008 Bututex] 3 UCTIEONPE Z00Z-ZIF-0T
sasuadxy I9Yl0
6T °SL 86°28L°'¢2 00°0 20 9c¥’'8 LZ EL8 612 TT S3S0) TPUUOSISg ISYI0 TYIOL
0S° L8 00°9 00°0 00" 2% 00" 2% 8% soueansul jusuwloTdwsun QQST-ZTF-0T
LS EL 90°L9T 00°0 76°9¥97% 8G°8¥ 2e9 JuSWeITI=T Q0¥ T-2TP-0T
8T VL 89°180'2 00°0 ZE'6LE’S IT° 269 T90°8 soueansul y3TesH o2ioTdwd QQET-ZTF-0T
89°8L ¥z 8zs 00°0 9L 6%6°'T 85°06T BLT'Z SIBOTPSW 3 SS 00ZT-ZI%-0T
S3sS0D T=2UuuosI=sd I9U30
S6°LL Iv-Log’L 00°0 65 98%'Ge 12 167’2 769 °2¢ SSTIBTES TYIOL
00°00T 00°0 00°0 007002 00°0 002 Keg AjTasbuoT 8OTTI-ZIP-0T
89°TT ze'8s 00°0 89°TT 00°0 00T FISTD FINOD - SWTIISAO TOTT-ZTIV-0T
20" 8L 60°6TT L 00°0 16 " 7LZ'SE T2 T67'2 v6g’zE }IOTD FINCD - SSTIBRTES Q0TI-ZI¥P-0T
S9TIBRTRES
LEDANG HONYIYd ORI IEHNDONE TENLOVY aoIrdgdad LIaoand STINLTANTAXHE TYLNINLIYdHTd
aLXx % LEDANG TYLOL HEL¥Ad OL AYHZX LNTTIOD LNIRIAOD
€€°E€8 QELIEIANOD ¥VIL J0 % 3anop TedroTuny - INENLIVAEd
pung Teasus9H- QT
8T0Z 'HIOE TI¥dAY :J0 SY
(QEILTANYNA) IMOdTE ASNAGXH ¥ HONITATI
L S EDVd HTTIASESATIIN J40 ALID WY 8E'TT 8T0Z-TTI-S



6L 2L CL'ST6'LEE 00°0 82 6LL'E06 90 9%L'LYS G569 'T¥2'T 3deqg ®0TTOd TYIOL
0589 9% "GPZ'GET 00°0 7S %9T'¥62Z LG %¥9G'ET 0TI%‘62% sesuadxy I92Y3lQ TYIOL
77 66 88°6LT 00°0 Z1°028°'1¢E 00°0 000‘2€E soTTod-3uswdInbEzAIsuTyoeW FT09-TZ7-0T
17" €6 69°952'¢2 00°0 IE'¥86 1€ 0070 172’ 7€ ®sB9T IBD) SOTTOG-OAS 392d 7009-T2¥-0T
8626 92°G8SL'T 0070 VL PPZT'ET 00°0 ooo‘sz 30T mor/3osloxg Teatded 0009-TZ¥-0T
0089 00°096 00°0 0o-ov0‘e 00°0%¢ 000‘€ sotazsg burtmog STOTUSA ZOOF-TZF-0T
0070 (0" %S 00°0 €0° 9SG 00°0 0 JUSWUTRRIDJUY ¥ STESW ZEEZ-TZP-0T
S0 2L GL GET'Z 0070 SZ ¥SL'S TIT 919 ooo’‘s suzoITUn 3 BUTY3IOTD $2EZ-TZP-0T
00°0 (gg-ssez’'e 00°0 gg-ssz’'z 00°0 0 osuadxyg 1S9I93UI ggEg-TZP-0T
00°0 00°00L 00°0 000 00°0 00L ebe3sod 9TEZ-1Z¥-0T
8L 06 8£°988°T 00°0 Z9°79S'8T LY 8LV IS7°'02 soTTod-3usudrnbg IO0UTW ZIEZ-IZ7-0T
§8°9LT (TL 2ST'T 00°0 TL 2592 I8 €6T 00S'T Aapung /snosueTT®2STH QIEZ-TZ¥-0T
TT°¥8 €% °GE9 00°0 LS ¥9E’‘E ST IVT 000'% setTddng 90TFFO Z0EZ-TZF-0T
€T LY 96°00L'€E 00°0 70°662°€E 00°0 000°L setTddng Butzea=sdo Q0gz-TZ¥-0T
LTI 0% 85 2IE‘Z0T 000 2% L8989 00°0 000°TLT Sag Ten3oeIjuo) DIIIS ZTZZ-T2F-0T
6E"LOT (E7°-9€S 00°0 €7 I6L L 00°9TI%7'2 GSZ’'L SSOTAISS TEN3DRIZUCD (IZZ-TZF-0T
82°TIT 00°9€V'¥ 00°0 00°79% 00°0 000°Ss soueusjuTel 3 Itedsy drnbE F0ZZ-TZ¥-0T
€8°LOT (96°LS6'T 00°0 96°LS6°9¢ 86 LOL'E 000°Se souruejutTeNzatTedsy STOTYDA Z0ZZ-T12P-0T
00°0 00°00S 00°0 00°0 00°0 00§ souru23luTEl 3 ITRded (0022-TZ¥-0T
SZ°0S I8°€E%2’'T 00°0 6T 9SZ'T 00°0 00s’'2 seng » s3draosqng’A3TOTTIAnd 90TZ-T2P-0T
6T 16 P #9792 00°0 6S°SSE’ LT §5°¥80°'€E 000°0€ Tend T®SSTa ‘TTO ‘Sed $0Te-T27-0T
GZ- 86 ¥E 22T 0070 99 LLB'S 85 ¥%0’'T 000°L syoedael » suoydsTal Z0TIZ-TZP-0T
£€8°€9 IO LIZ 00°0 66 Z8BE €9° 8¢ 009 SST3TTTIN 00TZ-TZ¥-0T
ZL°09 0E°268°ST 00°0 0L 0LG'PE 00°0 €97 ‘0% soumansul dwod M $T0Z-TZ¥-0T
0L"92T (687008 00°0 68°008°€ 62 E0S'T 000°€E bututexr 3 uoTlEONPHE Z00Z-TZV-0T
96" 2L 05" %2E 00°0 0S5°SL8 00°0 002'T osuadxyg TeOTPOW ISY30 0002-TIZ¥-0T
sasuadxyg I9U30
SZ IL ST .88°'1S 00" 0 $8°559'82T ZZ 6BT'¥T EVS’ 08T s3sop) TIuucsaed IS0 TYILOL
68769 9T TEE 000 ¥8°89L ZE 679 00T'T soueainsur juswioTdwsun Q0ST-TZ7-0T
7299 LT 6ST’'¥ 00°0 €8°8GT’8 50" ¥L8 8IE’'ZT JusweITIVY 00FT-TZ¥-0T
70 TL 9L 86E’'%E 00°0 72 86£'%8 0Z°'96£°'6 L6L'STT soueansul YyiTesH @°ioTdwd Q0ET-TZ7-0T
0T €L 90°866°2T 00°0 ¥6°62£'5¢E 59°692'€ gze's¥ SIBDTPSW ¥ SS 00ZI-TIZ%-0T
S3]sS0) TPUuuosasd I=3Yl0o
€EI°SL IT €8L°0ST 00°0 68° 856 08¥ L2 266 '6¢E 2L TIE9 SeTIeT®S TVLOL
IS5°S6 00° 002 00°0 00°0G2'% 00°0 0S¥ '¥ Keg Ajtasbuol 80TI-T2¥-0T
1208 2O LSB’E 00°0 86°2ZV0‘9T £9°798 00002 SOTTOg - SWTIFISA0 90TT-TZP-0T
90°SL TI6°T26'2%T 0070 60°2TZ'0EY £€2°608'9¢ PET'ELS 20TTOod - SO®TIBTBS GOTI-TZ7-0T
00°0 (€9 557 00°0 £9°5S¥ 00°0 0 yojedsTg - SWTIISA0 TOTT-TZ¥-0T
Z28° L8 I8 6ST'¥ 00°0 6T 866'6¢ Iv 8IE’'Z 8ST'7E spxooay/yo3ledstq - SO®TIeTeS Q0TT-IZ¥-0T
S9TIBTES
LEDANG HONYTIVL I ITNADNE TYALOY aoIgdda LEDANE STIALTANEAXH TYLNINLEYdHId
aQIx % IEoang TYLOL HIVA OL ¥UYEX INTDRIND INIIND
£E"E8 FQELATINOD JI¥HAE d0 % adeq eoTTod - INFWIYYAIA
pung TeRIsU=9- (0T
8T0Z ‘HLOE TI¥dY :J0 SY
(CIILIANYNAN) IHMOdTY FSNHEAXE 3 EANTATI
8 : @OV HTIIASYTTIIN 40 ALID WY 8€:TT 8T0Z-TT-9



€8°18 LE"TI9E'0FT 00°0 €9°LOT’'2EY 7E°90% '60% 697 'ZLL adsg ®aTd TYIOL
9T L8 ES FLO'FL 00°0 LT L09 208 9L °8£0°'00% Z89'sLs sesuadxy I9U3l0 TYIOL
00°86 gg-90e’s 00°0 S¥ GLY'LOF 00°28L'06€E Z8L STV eaxTg-juswdInby 3 AISUTYDBW $T09-2Z%-0T
A A TL 0LE’'GE 00°0 62°0ST 0T FLSL8'T TES'ST sutbug =2aTg-0oA§ 392d ¥009-227-0T
05 €€ 00°099°'2 00°0 00°0%E’T 00 0%% 000'% zeas-sjuswesoxdur SUTPTTINE 0009-227-0T
00°0 (00°06% 00°0 00°06¥% 00°0 0 uoT3juSASIg SITI/TRUOCTIOWOId 9Z0¥-227~0T
6£° 19 ¥8°GIT 00°0 9T ¥8T 00'0 00€ JUSWUTE3ISJUE 3 STESW ZEEZ-ZZP-0T
S0 2L 26 LTIT'T 00°0 80-288’z 00°662 000'¥% suroFTun ¥ BUTYIOTD ¥ZEZ-22F-0T
00°0 (00°8T 0070 00°'8T 00°0 0 sbe3sod 9TEZ-2ZV-0T
A4 09°009°T 00°0 07 66E°L 8% "8E¥ 000’6 Tesy 3nouani-dnbd IOUTH FTIEZ-2Z7-0T
LT 70T (TL 9T% 00°0 IL'9TI7 0T 27 O0PT’E 000°0T axTi-jusudinbyg IOUTH ZTEZ-22%-0T
80°02 TZ 66L 00°0 6L°00¢ 00°0 000°‘T Azpung/snodueTT@0STH 0TEZ-ZZF-0T
09°6ST (T0°96S 00°0 T0°96S°T 00°0 000°T seT1ddng =0TIFO Z0E£Z-2Z¥-0T
7S 99 €Z2°2v0’‘c 00°0 LL LS6'E 6S°G6T 000°L sot1ddng butrjzexsdo 00£Z-22¥-0T
9T 6L GT°0S6°Z 00°0 S8°%02'TT 00°90T SST'¥T SS0TAISS [BOIDBIZUC) 0TZZ-227-0T
9% 69 Z8°0T9 00°0 8T°68E'T (oo-€g 000’2 Z =35 - 3ute 3 xtedey BpTE 9082-22P-0T
85°89 6T°G87 ‘2 00°0 I8 ¥TG'€E 00°0 000’9 sourusjutey 3 ITedsy -drnbd $022-227-0T
0T 2L 09°085°S 00°0 07 6TV 7T =foRl=r4 000‘02 soueusjuTeRsITedsy STOTUYSA Z0ZZ-227-0T
20°6S 05°622°1T 00°0 0G 0LL'T 00°0 000°‘€E seng 3 s3drzosqng’A3TOTTANd S0TZ-ZZ7-0T
9% 99 9€°210°'2 00°0 79°L86°'€E 28 08€ 000‘9 Tena T=sSTA ‘TTO ‘S22 ¥012-227-0T
LE"2ZS €6°82Z7'T 00°0 LO TLS'T €9°¥¥ve 000’€E spzenate 3 suoydsTSL Z0TZ-22%-0T
29 18 8T 8LE'T 00°0 28°T12T'9 €L TO00'T 00S’L seoTAI9ds A3TTTIN 00TZ-2Z¥-0T
L9 %S S9°02ZL'¥Y 00°0 gE°€69°9s 00°0 ¥I?'0T esoueansur dwop M ¥T0Z-2Z¥-0T
SE° LG T8°G8T 00°0 6T FT8°9 00°29L 000'L Bututrexr ¥ uoTleonpd Z00Z-ZZ¥-0T
sasuadxy ISYJ0
S5 09 ¥9°98% ‘81 00°0 9 wLE'8Z 81°S0% ‘2 198°'9% S§3s0D TPUUOSIag IBYR0 TYLOL
IT 12T (L2" 02 00°0 LZ 91T LZ 91T 96 soueansul juswdordwaun Q0ST-ZZF-0T
0899 S¥° €99 00°0 SS PIE’T 9L LZT 896°T JUSWSITISY Q0P T-Z2¥-0T
L9°99 9€£°096°6 00°0 79 %2661 92°%L9'T S88‘6¢ soueansul Y3 TeaH S2XoTduX QQET-22¥-0T
LO " L¥ 0T €68°L 00°0 06°8T0 L 68°987% ZI6'%T ®Ie0TPSW 3 SS 00Z2T-22%-0T1
S1s0D TPuuocsaag I3Y3Q0
06°L9 0Z°008'L¥ 00°0 0B GZT'TOT 0% 296°'9 976 ‘8% T seTaRTRS TYIOL
00 00T 00°0 00°0 00°000°'T 00°0 000'T Reg AjtasbuoT 8QTT-227-0T
LT 0§ 00°6IV'EZ 00°0 00" TI8S’€ET 00°0 000°L¥ Keg zo93unioA SOTT-227-0T
78 GL 02 I8E'%e 00°0 08 ¥¥S5'9L 0%7°296°'9 926 ‘00T jusuzzedeq ®ITd - SOTIRTRS Q0TT-2Z¥-0T
soTIBTES
LIoandg HONVIVL faicezicizininte]icH TYALOY lalohntict: IE9ang SHMALIANEAIXE TYINIALEYITA
dLX % LEDANG TYILOL HLYVd OL d¥dX LNHETIAOD INTIAND
EE'EB COALETANOD dAV¥HEHZ A0 % 3deg =2ITd - INIZRLIVAEA
pung Teasu=2D- QT
8T0Z ’'HIOE TI¥gY :Jd0 SY
(QELIANYNN) INOdTE FSNEIXT 3 EONTATS
6 1 EOVd ETIIASYETIIN 40 XALID WY 8€:T1T 8T02-TII-S



Z8° 8¢ vz 186°'LE 00°0 9L°9%2'%S B6 L6E’'9 BEZ 26 seoTazeg jusuwdoTea®d TYLOL
6E°6E 69 L6T'92 00°0 IE°220'LT SEZ¥9’Z 0zz'evw sesusdxyd ISY30 TYIOL
0070 (00°"%99°'¢€ 00°0 00°%99°€ 00°0 0 seoTaz®s TeBOT $107-077-0T
97881 (58°22%v’'¥® 00°0 G8°22v’'6 00°0%E’2 000°S SOOTAIDS TRUOTSSSI0Id (000%-0%¥-0T
S5 9% Sv°€ES 00°0 5597 SS'6T 00T JUSWUTE1IDIUF 3 STRSW ZEEZ-0FF-0T
00°0 00°00S 00°0 00°0 00°0 00§ swrozTun 3 BUTYlOoTD ¥ZEC-0%P-0T
00°0 00°00S 00°0 00'0 00°0 00§ @be3sogd 9TEZ-07%-0T
00°0T T0°00L 2 00°0 66 662 00°0 000°€ Juswdtnby IOUTW ZIEZ-0%F-0T
00°0 00°000°T 00°0 00°0 0070 000°T Xzpung/SNosSuUBTTSOSTH 0TEC-07¥-0T
67 2% ST SLS 00°0 S8°¥Z¥ 00°0 000'T setTddns SOTIFO Z0EZ-0%¥-0T
66 0T €T 068 00°0 LB 60T 0T S9 000'T soT1Tddng bHuriexzadp 00gZ-0FF-0T
9T°'T 00'o0vz’zZe 00°0 00°09¢2 00°0 00s’'z2Ze S8DTAISS TEBn3OBIZUCD 0TZZ-0FF-0T
£v°S L9 G¥6 00°0 £E°¥S 00°0 000°T souruUSjUTERYITRASY STOTUYSA Z0ZZ-0VP-0T
02 €€ 00°899 00°0 00°2gE 00°0 000'T sngssuotidraosqns ‘A3 TOTTANd 90TZ-077-0T
6 17 £6° 089 00°0 LO " 6T% 76" LY 000'T TITO 3 S®ed $01Z-0¥¥-0T
€8° LS 99°12% 00°0 7€ 8LS 9L°SIT 000°T 39uzozul /suoydeTal Z0TZ-0F%-0T
8£° 26 ¥1°6 00°0 98°0TT 00°0 0ZT soueansur dwod M FT0Z-07F-0T
0%°02 00°86€ 00°0 00° 20T 00" %E 00%S ‘(soeg bBurpzooad ®) ZF4 0T0Z-0FF-OT
LS 8T 0v-LS8'Z 00°0 09°2Z%T'T 00°02 000'¥% Bututexy 3 uoTiEONPE Z00Z-0¥¥-0T
00°0 (00" gg 00°0 00° S8 0070 0 ssuadxyg TE0TPeW I9Y30 000Z-0%¥-0T
sasuadxy Io9yUlzQ
oF €L LO"9TG’'E 00°0 €6°T0L'6 £9°G00'T 8TIZET S3sS0D TIUUOSIDg I2UF0 TYILOL
05 L8 00°9 00°0 00" 2% 0027 8v "sur juswioTdwsun QOST-07¥-0T
£E'69 8L ETIZ 00°0 2z €8v Z29° €S L69 JusuweITIDE Q0¥ T-07F-0T
29 EL 0¥7°885'e 0070 09°69T L LY 60L 8EL’'6 soueansul y3zTe=sH =@=2KkoTdux QOET-0FvV-0T
6E EL 68 LZL 00°0 TI°L00O‘E 57002 SEL'E SIEOTPSK 3 SS 00ZT-0FF-0T
sS3s0) TPuucsaag I3aylxo
I6 9L BV L92'8 00°0 gs-eges'Le 00°0SL'Z 008°SE S9TIBTES TYIOL
00°G9 06" LT 00°0 02 00°0 0§ Xeg Ajtasbuol g0TT-07¥-0T
26 9L B6°6vC' 8 00°0 20" 005'LE o0-"osL’z 0SL’SE soag juswdoTsa®g - SSTIRTRS 00TT-0¥¥-0T
S9TIBTES
piRcaleinicy HONYIVE AEIEFFGHNNDONE TNOLOY aqoI¥dad LEDANG STINLTIANTAXEH TYINHWNILIEYdHd
aIx % IE9ang TYIOL FIVA OL ¥YIX INTIEOD INTITIND
£E°E8 CHILATANOD I¥HE A0 % S20TAIDS jusudoTaasd - INIWLIYdAA

0T -ED¥4

8T0Z ’'HIOE TI¥dY
(QILIAAYNA) I¥OdMy ESNEJXE 3 ENNFAHTS

ATITIASEATIIN Jd0 ALID

+d0 SY

puni Teasu=9- 0T

WY 8€-TT 8T0C-TTI-S



00°0 6E°¥TO’'LS 00°0 (6€"¥T0'L8 ) (€0"€00’€cs6E ) o STANLIANIAXH (YEANA) /TEAO0 EONIATI
¥0° TIL L8 L9E'EEE 00°0 ET1°760°682°2 85°9€0'G65S zov‘zzz'e STINLIANEAXE TYIOL
v IL 8E€°G96'GL 00°0 29 °8%L’'68T TI1°€28'8T PIL S92 s3yxeq /330 A3 TUnUOD TYIOL
8L°69 69°085°G9 00°0 IE 62 IST LE G66 7T 0TI0’LTIZ sesuadxy I9Y30 TYIOL
00°0 00°000°'22 00°0 00°0 00°0 000°22 s, durzspunoabieTd/aea yIed 8T09-F¥¥y-0T
Z8°v8 0Z°6ET’0ZT 00°0 08°099'21IT 0T"GS7'TT 00L'ZET Jmg ueOT I3D WWOD-DAS IIRA F009-FFF-0T
0070 00°000°0T 00°0 00°0 00°0 000°0T 730 D-5,dwur BUTPTTNE 0009-FF¥-0T
00°0 (00°g¢g 00°0 00°SS 00°0 0 S®DTAIDS TRUOTSS®F0Id 0007-FF¥-0T
07" ITT (¥E€°0FT'T 00°0 PETOPT'TI ¥1°98%S 000°0T sjusag TeTO2dS Q00E-FF¥-0T
00°0 00°00T 00°0 00°0 00°0 00T swIoFTUnNBUTY3OTD F#ZET-7FF-0T
98°€6T (95°8¢€6 00°0 96 8E6°T 00°0 000'T zojusD D-jusudTnby IOUTKH ZIEZ-F7P-0T
66 Z¢ 90°0L9 00°0 ¥6 " 62E LZ €€ 000°T Azpung /snoduTTa0STH OTEZ-7FF-0T
AN A 8L 9L9 00°0 gz gee LO"LT 000'T seTT1ddns =0TIFO Z0E£Z-#¥P-0T
2y 8¥ 29 TIE0'T 00°0 8€°896 ZS°0ET 000’z setTddng bButriexado 00€Z-¥¥P-0T
L9 26 £2°98% 00°0 LL ETV'L 00°G2S 000°8 S8DTAIDS TEBNIOBIZUCD 0TZZ-FPP-0T
S0°8T 05 L60'% 00°0 05206 00°0 000‘s soueusjutel Ajxsdoxg suIed LOZZ-FPP-0T
¥z LE 6I'8ET’'E 00°0 T8°T98'T €6°9T9 000‘sg soueu=jure 3 zTedsy BpTd 9022-77v-0T
000 (v6°"S¥% 00°0 76°S¥ 00°0 0 souruejutrepmITedey drnbi $02Z2-¥77-0T1
00°0 00°00T 00°0 00" 0 00" 0 00T ng’suoridraosqns ‘AFTOTIARA 90TIZ-F7P-0T
€s'8ez  (0E"g8E’T 00°0 pe°s8e’e 61°STIE 000°'T 3suxsjurysuoydsTel Z0TZ-777-0T
9% " G9 €L ILB’'S 00°0 LT 8ZT'TI SI'9TE’T 000°LT S®T3TTITIN 00TZ-¥#¥-0T
L0 09 26 E¥ 00°0 80°99 00°0 0TT soueansur dwoD M FT0Z-FFP¥P-0T
¥6°0€ 03" 069 00°0 0% 60€E 00°0 000°T BPuTuTeI] 3 UOTIBRONPH ZO0Z-TFy-0T
sosusadxy IsUy3l0
79 WL 88°TIZ9'€E 00°0 21°099°0T BE E€60°T Z8Z'vT s3sop TouUuosIDg IBYIO0 TYIOL
0S° L8 00°9 00°0 00" 2% 00°2¥ 8% ‘sul juswAoTdweun Q0ST-F¥¥-0T
S6°8L 25 VET 00°0 8% ¥0S 79 6% 6€9 JuswaITI®Y 00V T-7F7-0T
I6°€EL 0v7°€68°¢2 00°0 09°¥6T'8 ST TT8 B8O'TT @oueansul yijTesH o3AoTdwX Q0ET-#PP-0T
€g- 9L 96" L8S 00°0 70°6T6°T 65°06T Los’e SIBOTPSH ¥ S5 00ZT-FF¥-0T
S3s0D HwﬂﬂOmHmm Hmﬁo
SE°08 I8°29L°'9 00°0 6T°659°LE 9c wEL'Z 2Zy'¥vE saTIRTES TYIOL
00°00T 000 0070 00°0ST 0070 0ST Keg A3tasbuoT 8OTTI-777-0T
62°52T (8E°6LE 000 BE'6L8'T 9L°212 00S'T SYIBd - SWIIISL0 TOTI-FF7-0T
TZ 8L 6T 2F¥T’'L 00°0 I8°629°'Se 09°T25'2 gLL TE syIed - SOTIBTRS 00TT-F¥¥-0T
SOTIBTES
LEDANg HONYTIYd O ETHNDONE TYNALOY acIdadad LEDANG SHINLIANIAXE TYLNINLIVdEd
QLA % LEDANG TYLOL HEILIVd OL dYHX LNETAND LNETTEND
€E°E€8 QEITIANOD ¥VIX JO % syIeg/I30 AFTUnNUWOD - INTWLIYAEC
.ﬁ.ﬂﬂ.m ._.!m.Hm._Hm.wl OH
8102 ‘HLOE TI¥AY :d0 SY
(QELIANYNA) IH0d@d ESNEAXE 3 EONZAFET
IT T H9VYd HTIIASIETIIN 40 ZALID WY 82 TT 8T0Z-TT-9



5-11-2018 CITY OF MILLERSVILLE PAGE : 1
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF: APRIL 30TH, 2018
20 -Sewer Fund

BALANCE
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 Sewer Fund - Farmers Bank 186,946.37
1001 Phase II Sewer - Farmers Bk 583,307.69
1005 Sewer Fund MM-Farmers Bk 394 ,856.96
1010 Petty Cash - Cash on Hand 300.00
Total Checking/Savings 1,165,411.02
Current Assets
1100 Cash Reserves - State of TN 24.00
1200 Accounts Receivable 75,505.05
1201 Allowance For Uncollectible ( 148,756.76)
1202 A/R - KVS Bad Debt 45,432 .44
1203 A/R - Incode Bad Debt 119,359.88
1204 UNAPPLIED CREDITS ( 11,515.85)
1220 A/R - Other 68,491.00
1260 Postage Dep (Utility Billing) 1,830.40
1300 Inventory Asset 31,835.74
1302 Inventory - Pumps 23,150.00
Total Current Assets 205,355.90
Total Current Assets 1,370,766.92
Other Assets
Fixed Assets
1400 Land - City Hall 47,268.00
1401 Buildings 97,853.91
1402 Furniture & Equipment 264,285.72
1403 Vehicles 231,212.96
1406 Sewer Collection System 8,670,847.51
1450 Net Pension Asset 21,443.00
1455 Deferred Outflows for Pension 11,728.69
1499 Accumulated Depreciation ( 4,082,358.21)
Total Fixed Assets 5,262,281.58
Transfers
1610 Due To / From General Fund ( 69,119.76)
1630 Due To / From Street Fund 197.33
1640 Due To / From Solid Waste Fund ( 144,356.69)
1660 Due To / From Stormwater Fund ( 51,801.30)
Total Transfers ( 265,080.42)
Total Other Assets 4,997,201.16

TOTAL ASSETS 6,367,968.08




5-11-2018 CITY OF MILLERSVILLE PAGE: 2
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF: APRIL 30TH, 2018
20 -Sewer Fund
BALANCE
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
2030 REFUNDS PAYABLE 46.12
2109 Accrued Compensated Absences 6,667.57
2250 Deferred Inflows for Pension 12,696.00
Total Current Liabilities 19,409.69
Total Current Liabilities 19,409.69
Long Term Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES 19,409.69
Equity
2700 Retained Earnings 126,905.28
2710 Fund Balance/Net Assets 969,115.93
2713 Net Assets/Capital & Debt 5,225,785.44
Net Income 26,751.74
Total Equity 6,348,558.39
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 6,367,968.08
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5-11-2018 CITY OF MILLERSVILLE
BATLANCE SHEET
AS OF: APRIL 30TH, 2018
30 -Street Fund

PAGE : 1

BALANCE
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 State Street Aid Fund-Farmers 229,750.01
1002 Road Maint.Fund-Farmers Bank 25,462.21
Total Checking/Savings 255,212 .22
Current Assets
1300 Inventory 2,629,94
Total Current Assets 2,629.94
Total Current Assets 257,842 .16
Other Assets
Transfers
1610 Due To / From General Fund 50,879.33
1620 Due To / From Sewer Fund 197.33)
1640 Due To / From Solid Waste Fund 3.54)
Total Transfers 50,678.46
Total Other Assets 50,678.46
TOTAL ASSETS 308,520.62
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Equity
2700 Retained Earnings 126,501.87)
2720 Fund Balance-Nonspendable 2,629.94
2740 Fund Balance—-Committed 546,666.89

Net Income

114,274.34)

Total Equity

308,520.62

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

308,520.62
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5-11-2018 CITY OF MILLERSVILLE PAGE : 1
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF: APRIL 30TH, 2018
40 -Solid Waste Fund
BALANCE
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 Solid Waste Fund - Farmers Bk 26'7,114.45
Total Checking/Savings 267,114.45
Current Assets
1200 Accounts Receivable 35,553.91
1201 Allowance for Bad Debt ( 23,971.42)
1203 A/R - Incode Bad Debt 29,338.95
1300 Inventory 4,473.20
Total Current Assets 45,394 .64
Total Current Assets 312,509.09
Other Assets
Transfers
1610 Due To / From General Fund ( 32,463.31)
1620 Due To / From Sewer Fund 144,356.69
1630 Due To / From Street Fund 3.54
Total Transfers 111,896.92
Total Other Assets 111,896.92
TOTAL ASSETS 424 ,406.01
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
2200 Deferred Revenue 36,981.50
Total Current Liabilities 36,981.50
Total Current Liabilities 36,981.50
Long Term Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES 36,981.50




5-11-2018 CITY OF MILLERSVILLE
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF: APRIL 30TH, 2018
40 -Solid Waste Fund

PAGE : 2

BALANCE

Equity

2700 Retained Earnings 11,025.92

2720 Fund Balance-Nonspendable 4,473.20

2730 Fund Balance-Restricted 460,420.66

Net Income 88,495.27)
Total Equity 387,424 .51
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 424,406.01
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5~11-2018 CITY OF MILLERSVILLE PAGE: i &
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF: APRIL 30TH, 2018
50 -Drug Fund
BALANCE
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 Drug Fund - Farmers Bank 54,900.77
1001 Drug Fund Escrow Acct-Farmers 61,331.81
Total Checking/Savings 116,232.58
Current Assets
1110 cCash on Hand - Petty Cash 245.00
Total Current Assets 245,00
Total Current Assets 116,477 .58
Other Assets
Transfers
1610 Due To / From General Fund 2,099.57
Total Transfers 2,099.57
Total Other Assets 2,099.57
TOTAL ASSETS 118,577.15
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
2002 DF Escrow Pending Acct 61,331.81
Total Current Liabilities 61,331.81
Total Current Liabilities 61,331.81
Long Term Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES 61,331.81
Equity
2700 Retained Earnings 22,726.66
2730 Fund Balance-Restricted 28,601.02
Net Income 5,917.66
Total Equity 57,245 .34



5-11-2018 CITY OF MILLERSVILLE PAGE : 2
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF: APRIL 30TH, 2018
50 -Drug Fund

BALANCE

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 118,577.15
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5-11-2018 CITY OF MILLERSVILLE PAGE : Il i
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF: APRIL 30TH, 2018
60 -Stormwater Fund

BALANCE
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 Stormwater Fund - Farmers Bk 26,559.80
Total Checking/Savings 26,559.80
Current Assets
1200 Accounts Receivable 13,121.47
1203 A/R - Stormwater Bad Debt 237.17
1220 A/R - Other 10,754.00
Total Current Assets 24,112.64
Total Current Assets 50,672.44
Other Assets
Transfers
1610 Due To / From General Fund ( 18,025.57)
1620 Due To / From Sewer Fund 51,801.30
Total Transfers 33,775.73
Total Other Assets 33,775.73
TOTAL ASSETS 84,448.17
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Equity
2700 Retained Earnings 36,677.79
Net Income 47,770.38
Total Equity 84,448.17

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 84,448.17
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BLANKENSHIP CPA GROUP, PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS
April 6, 2018

To the Mayor and Board of Commissioners
City of Millersville, Tennessee

This letter is to inform the Mayor and Board of Commissioners of the City of Millersville, Tennessee (the
City) about significant matters related to the conduct of our audit as of and for the year ended June 30,
2017, sothat it can appropriately discharge its oversight responsibility and we comply with our professional
responsibilities.

The following summarizes various matters that must be communicated to you under auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our Responsibilities With Regard to the Financial Statement Audit

Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
Govemment Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States have been
described to you in our arrangement letter dated July 7, 2017. Our audit of the financial statements does
not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities, which are also
described in that lefter.

Overview of the Planned Scope and Timing of the Financial Statement Audit

In our arrangement letter dated July 7, 2017, we communicated the planned scope and timing of our audit
and have discussed with you our identification of, and planned audit response to, significant risks of material
misstatement.

Significant Accounting Practices, Including Policies, Estimates and Disclosures

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2017. We noted no
transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper
period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly
from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the pension liabilities and deferrals are based on actuarial
valuations. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the actuarial
valuation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as
a whole.

Management's estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on historical
sewer, sanitation, and storm water activities revenues, historical loss levels, and an
analysis of the collectability of individual accounts. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the allowance in determining that they are reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management's estimate of unearned revenue related to sanitation activities is based on
billing dates subsequent to year-end and an estimation of usage is accrued based on billing
data. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the unearned
revenue in determining that they are reasonable in relation tothe financial statements taken
as a whole.

1000 Northchase Drive, Suite 260 ¢ Goodlettsville, TN 37072 ¢ 615-859-8800



Mayor and Board of Commissioners
City of Millersville, Tennessee

April 6, 2018

Page 2

Significant Accounting Practices, Including Policies, Estimates and Disclosures, Continued

Management's estimate of depreciation is based on expected remaining lives and salvage
values of capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to determine
the useful lives and depreciation allowance in determining that they are reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates described above and
determined that the balances recorded for these estimates are reasonable in relation the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was:

The disclosure of long-term debt in the financial statements is significant in materiality and
in potential credit risk.

The disclosure of pension obligations in the financial statements are significant due to
reliance on third party actuarial valuations.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audits

We encountered no disagreements with management over the application of significant accounting
principles, the basis for management's judgments on any significant matters, the scope of the audit, or
significant disclosures to be included in the financial statements.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Audit
adjustments proposed by us and recorded by the City have been provided to management as an
attachment to the management representation letter,

Uncorrected misstatements are summarized in the management representation letter.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or
the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our
audits.

Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management

representation letter attached to this letter,

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion
that may be expressed on those financial statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge,
there were no such consultations with other accountants.
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Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City's auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to
our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and Required
Supplementary Information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods or preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basis financial statements. We did
not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RS|.

We were engaged to report on supplementary information listed in the table of contents for the audit report,
which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information,
we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the
information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared
and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on the introductory, statistical sections, and other supplemental information
listed in the table of contents of the audit report, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI.
Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Conclusion

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners and
management of the City, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Sincerely,

Blarhonshp CPA Growp PLLC

Blankenship CPA Group, PLLC
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City of Millersville
Roster of City Officials
June 30, 2017

Position Official Period of Service
Mayor Tim Lassiter 7/11/16-6/30/17
Vice Mayor E. Keith Bell 11/15/16-6/30/17

Commissioner

City Manager
City Recorder

Chief of Police

Public Works Director

Parks & Rec Coordinator

Fire Chief
Development Director
City Judge

City Attorney

Bonnie Coleman
Bonnie Coleman
Milton Dorris

David Gregory

Dan Toole

Caryn Miller

Holly Murphy, CMFO
Mark Palmer

Mark Palmer - Interim
David Hindman
Jerry Schrader
Bethany Wilkerson
Thomas King I

A. Michael Barr

John Lowe

Robert Wheeler

* Salary information has been omitted.

= All employees of the City of Millersville are covered under the Property and Crime policy with the TML Risk

Management Pool up to $150,000 crime coverage.

7M116-11/15/16
11/15/16-6/30/17
7/1/16-6/30/17
7/1/16-6/30/17
7/1/16-6/30/17
7M/16-6/30/17
7/1/16-6/30/17
1/9/17-6/30/17
8/21/16-1/8/17
7/1/16-8/8/16
7/1/16-6/30/17
7/1/16-6/30117
711/16-6/30/117
8/22/16-6/30/17
7/1/16-6/30/17

7/1/16-6/30/17
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BLANKENSHIP CPA GROUP, PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of the City Commission
City of Millersville

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Millersville (the City) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for each major fund for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

1000 Northchase Drive, Suite 260 « Goodlettsville, TN 37072 « 615-859-8800



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 4 - 7 and the schedule of changes in net pension liability (asset) and related
ratios and schedule of contributions based on participation in the public employee pension plan of TCRS on
pages 32 - 33 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section, individual fund statements and
schedules on pages 34 - 36, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance,
schedule of long-term debt, principal, and interest requirements, schedule of changes in property taxes
receivable, schedule of property tax rates and assessments, and schedule of utility rate structure and number
of customers, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The individual fund statements and schedules, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance, schedule of long-term debt, principal, and interest requirements, and schedule of changes in
property taxes receivable are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section, schedule of property tax rates and assessments, and schedule of utility rate structure
and number of customers have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Govermment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 6, 2018, on our
consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Blanhosskip CPA Gowp PLLC

April 6, 2018



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Millersville provides this Management Discussion and Analysis as prescribed by the
Government Accounting Standards Board. This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an
introduction to the City of Millersville's basic financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017.

The City's basic financial statements include three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains additional
required supplementary information and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The Statement of Net Position presents
information on all of the City's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Comparing the year-to-year increases or decreases
in net position may be used as an indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating. The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position
changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported when the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in the future fiscal periods
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused compensated absences). These statements include all
assets of the City (including infrastructure) as well as all liabilities (including long-term debt).

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues from functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of the City include general government and administration, public safety, public works, parks
and recreation, and the solid waste and storm water operations. The business-type activities of the City
include the sewer operation. The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 8 — 9 of
this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements include statements for two categories of activities — governmental and
proprietary funds. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on current sources and uses of spendable resources, as
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may
be used in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. Since the focus of governmental
funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, a comparison of the information
presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements may offer readers a better understanding of the long-term effect of
near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental fund
statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate
the comparison between funds and activities.



The City maintains five governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the Governmental
Funds Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances for the major funds, which include the General Fund and Solid Waste Fund.
Data from the remaining funds is combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data
for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary (Enterprise) Funds

The City maintains one proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses an
enterprise fund to account for its sewer operations. Proprietary funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements, this report also presents certain required supplementary
information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its
employees.

The combining statements in connection with the non-major governmental funds are presented following

the required supplementary information on pensions. Combining and individual fund statements and
schedules can be found on pages 34 — 36 of this report.

Condensed Comparative Data

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ASSETS
Current and Other Assets $ 4,568,956 § 3,464,832 $ 1,186,869 $ 1,236,671 $ 5,755,825 § 4,701,503
Capital Assets 4,462,828 4,717,165 5,229,111 5,225,785 9,691,939 9,842,850
Total Assets 9,031,784 8,181,997 6,415,980 6,462,456 15,447,764 14,644,453
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES 138,510 141,593 11,728 12,131 150,238 163,724
LIABILITIES
Other Liabilities 400,284 334,240 93,206 120,075 493,490 454,315
Long-term Debt 1,086,439 848,335 - - 1,086,439 848,335
Total Liabilities 1,486,723 1,182,575 93,206 120,075 1,579,929 1,302,650
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES 982,922 920,246 12,696 22,500 995,618 942,746
NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 3,767,171 3,868,829 5,229,111 5,225,785 8,996,282 9,094,614
Restricted 984,145 788,358 21,443 21,213 1,005,588 809,571
Unrestricted 1,949,333 1,563,582 1,071,252 1,085,014 3,020,585 2,648,596

Total Net Pasition $ 6,700649 $ 6,220,769 $ 6321806 § 6,332,012 $ 13,022,455 § 12,562,781




Condensed Comparative Data — Continued

Overall Analysis

The overall financial condition of the City on June 30, 2017 is sound. All funds operated within the
budgeted expense parameters and there were no major permanent changes in existing revenue sources.
The governmental fund balances increased from $2,266,989 to $3,164,499 and the governmental
activities net position increased by $479,880. The business-type activities had a decrease in net position
of $10,206.

Fund Analysis

General Fund. The general fund balance increased by $707,162. The City received $390,782 in Loan
Proceeds for a new fire engine that will not be completed until next fiscal year, which contributed to the
majority of the increase in the fund balance. Total revenue was higher than anticipated and all
departments within the general fund operated below budgeted expense projections.

Solid Waste Fund. The solid waste fund balance increased by $42,683. Total revenues were higher than
anticipated and expenses were slightly below budgeted projections.

Sewer Fund. The sewer fund experienced a loss from operations of $19,894 and a decrease in net
position of $10,206. The cash balance increased from $1,060,558 to $1,140,272 at the close of the fiscal
year, an increase of $79,714. Operating revenues were lower than anticipated and expenses for
depreciation and pumps for new construction were higher than anticipated, which contributed to the loss
from operations and the decrease in net position. The operating income will need to be reviewed
annually to determine its adequacy to meet all financial and contractual requirements and obligations.
Agreements between Millersville and Metro Water Services (MWS) will continue to require capital
investment to improve the efficiency of the sewer system through a reduction in inflow and infiltration
(I & ). A system rehabilitation program is currently in progress and will continue to require capital
improvements.

Budget Variances in the General Fund

The most significant budget variance resulted from higher than projected local tax revenue and court fine
receipts. Revenue that was not anticipated included the sale of city-owned property and insurance
proceeds. Minor expense budget line item variances fell within expected ranges and all departments
operated within budget parameters.

Capital Asset and Long-term Debt Activity

The Poalice Department continued its vehicle replacement program by purchasing one new vehicle. A
new vehicle was also purchased for use in the Codes Department and for Storm Water Inspections.
Building improvements were made to City Hall by constructing office space in the Fire Bay area to
accommodate personnel. These purchases were all made using available funds. Finally, the City
entered into a loan agreement with First Tennessee Bank for $390,782 to purchase a new Fire Engine,
which was under construction at year-end.

Following is a summary of the City's capital assets:

Governmental Business-type Total

Activities Activities Primary Government

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Land $ 603,801 $ 728,821 $ 47,268 $ 47,268 3 651,069 § 776,089
Construction in Progress 46,172 41,134 - - 46,172 41,134
Buildings & Improvements 4,080,390 4,065,352 97,854 95,838 4,178,244 4,161,190
Equipment & Furniture 1,113,380 1,112,509 264,286 151,709 1,377,666 1,264,218
Vehicles 1,693,785 1,721,057 231,213 243,963 1,924,998 1,965,020
Sewer Collections - - 8,670,848 8,675,162 8,670,848 8,575,162
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (3,074,700)  (2,951,708) (4,082,358)  (3,888,155) (7,157,058)  (6,839,863)
Total Capital Assets $ 4462828 § 4,717,165 $ 5229111 $ 5,225,785 $ 9,691,939 § 9,942,950




Following is a summary of the City’s long-term liabilities:

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Compensated Absences $ 41,513 § 42,448 $ 6,668 $ 3,551 $ 48,181 $ 45,999
Notes Payable 1,021,436 749,654 - - 1,021,436 749,654
Capital Lease 65,003 98,681 - - 65,003 98,681
Total Capital Assets $ 1,127,952 % 880,783 $ 6,668 $ 3,551 $ 1,134,620 $ 894,334

More detailed infarmation can be found in the notes for financial statements.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for citizens,
taxpayers, customers, investors, creditors, and all others with an interest in the City's finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information

should be forwarded to the City Recorder at 615-859-0880.



CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2017

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,756,140 $ 1,140,272 $ 3,896,412
Receivables, Net 1,065,500 137,708 1,203,208
Internal Balances, Net 146,220 (146,220) -
Inventories 7,103 31,836 38,939
Prepaid ltems - 1,830 1,830
Restricted Cash 401,761 - 401,761
Total Current Assets 4,376,724 1,165,426 5,542,150
Capital Assets
Non Depreciable Capital Assets 649,973 47,268 697,241
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation 3,812,855 5,181,843 . 8,994,698
Total Capital Assets 4,462,828 5,229,111 9,691,939
Other Assets
Net Pension Asset 192,232 21,443 213,675
Total Assets 9,031,784 6,415,980 15,447,764
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Pensions 138,510 11,728 150,238
Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities 321,789 86,538 408,327
Unearned Revenue 36,982 - 36,982
Long-term Liabilities:
Compensated Absences 41,513 6,668 48,181
Current Portion of Long-term Debt 189,826 - 189,826
Long-term Debt 896,613 - 896,613
Total Liabilities 1,486,723 93,206 1,579,929
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Property Tax Revenue 853,455 - 853,455
Deferred Pensions 129,467 12,696 142,163
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 982,922 12,696 995,618
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,767,171 5,229,111 8,996,282
Restricted for:
Solid Waste 444,239 - 444,239
State Street Aid 275,357 - 275,357
Storm Water 36,446 - 36,446
Drug Education and Investigations 35,871 - 35,871
Other Purposes 192,232 21,443 213,675
Unrestricted 1,949,333 1,071,252 3,020,585
Total Net Position $ 6,700,649 $ 6,321,806 $ 13,022,455

See notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2017

Solid Non-major Total
General Waste Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash in Bank $1,830,656 $ 443,129 $ 482,355 $ 2,756,140
Receivables, Net 914,847 33,766 21,727 970,340
Intergovernmental Receivables, Net 95,160 - - 95,160
Due From Other Funds 95,313 76,214 54,328 225,855
Inventory - 4,473 2,630 7,103
Restricted Cash 390,782 - 10,979 401,761
Total Assets $3,326,758 $ 557,582 $ 572,019 $ 4,456,359
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 116,144 $ 22,690 $ 17,155 $ 155,989
Due To Other Funds 26,738 19,814 33,083 79,635
Unearned Revenue : - 36,982 - 36,982
Other Current Liabilities 152,644 2,176 10,979 165,799
Total Liabilities 205,526 81,662 61,217 438,405
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Deferred Property Tax Revenue 853,455 - - 853,455
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory - 4,473 2,630 7,103
Restricted For:
Solid Waste - 471,447 - 471,447
State Street Aid - - 420,166 420,166
Drug Education and Investigations - - 51,328 51,328
Storm Water - - 36,678 36,678
Unassigned 2,177,777 - - 2,177,777
Total Fund Balances 2,177,777 475,920 510,802 3,164,499
Total Liahilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances $3,326,758 $ 557,582 $ 572,019 $ 4,456,359
Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Position are different because:
Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 3,164,499
Other assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 192,232
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 4,462,828
Deferred Outflows of Resources not reported in the funds. 138,510
Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (1,127,953)
Deferred Inflows of Resources not reported in the funds. (129,467)
Net Position of the Governmental Activities $ 6,700,649

See notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

Revenues
Local Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Fines
Drug and Gambling Revenue
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services
Interest Income
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Parks and Recreation
Solid Waste
State Street Aid
Drug Fund
Storm Water

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In (Out)

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets

Insurance Proceeds
Debt Proceeds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - June 30, 2016

Fund Balances - June 30, 2017

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Solid Non-major Total
General Waste Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 1,381,763 $ - $ - $ 1,381,763
45,624 - 1,150 46,774
391,831 - - 391,831
- - 43,454 43,454
645,666 - 188,060 833,726
28,715 421,590 154,018 604,323
4,227 654 586 5,467
23,958 2,087 690 26,735
2,521,784 424,331 387,958 3,334,073
632,010 - - 632,010
1,409,542 - - 1,409,542
102,758 - - 102,758
- 397,798 - 397,798
- - 92,845 92,845
- - 16,789 16,789
- - 159,495 159,495
152,678 - - 152,678
14,582 - - 14,582
2,311,570 397,798 269,129 2,978,497
210,214 26,533 118,829 355,576
(3,388) - 27,883 24,495
92,367 16,150 953 109,470
17,187 - - 17,187
390,782 - - 390,782
496,948 16,150 28,836 541,934
707,162 42,683 147 665 897,510
1,470,615 433,237 363,137 2,266,989
$ 2177777 3 475,920 $ 510,802 $ 3,164,499

11

See notes to the financial statements.



CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different from the
amounts reported for governmental funds in the statement of revenues, expendituresand changes
in fund balances because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 3 897,510

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.

However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is

allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as

depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation

expense and proceeds from disposals exceeded capital outlay

expenditures and accumulated depreciation on disposals in the

current period. (254,337)

Governmental funds report retirement contributions as
expenditures. These expenditures are reported as deferred
outflows of resources and either pension income or expense in the
government-wide financial statements. This is the amount by

which pension income exceeds pension expenditures in the current
period. (3,083)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial

resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the

principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial

resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however

has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the

effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items

when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred anc

amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net

effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and

related items such as interest. (238,105)

Expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds. 77,895

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 479,880

See notes to the financial statements.
12



Revenues
Local Taxes:
Property and Personalty Taxes
Sales Taxes
Alcoholic Bewerage Taxes
Cable Taxes
Business Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Fines
Intergovernmental Revenues:
Sales Taxes
Petroleum Special Taxes
Income Taxes
Alcoholic Beverage Taxes
Telecommunicalions Taxes
Corporate Excise Taxes
TVA - In Lieu of Taxes
Charges for Senices
Interest Income
Miscellaneous Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures

Current:

General Govemment:
Salaries and Benefils
General and Administrative
Contraclual Senices
Supplies and Miscellaneous
Repairs and Maintenance
Capital Outlay

Public Safety - Police:
Salaries and Benefils
General and Administrative
Contractual Senices
Supplies and Miscellaneous
Repairs and Maintenance
Capital Qutlay

Public Safety - Fire:

Salaries and Benefits
General and Administrative
Contraclual Sendces
Supplies and Miscellaneous
Repairs and Maintenance
Capital Qutlay

Parks and Recreation:
Salaries and Benefits
General and Administrative
Contractual Services
Supplies and Miscellaneous
Repairs and Maintenance

Solid Waste:
Salaries and Benefils
General and Administrative
Disposal Fees
Caontractual Senices
Supplies and Miscellaneous
Repairs and Maintenance
Capital Qutlay

Debt Senice:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In (Out)
Proceeds fram Sale of Capital Assels
Insurance Proceeds
Debt Proceeds
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - June 30, 2016

Fund Balances - June 30, 2017

CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual

General and Solid Waste Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

General Fund

Solid Waste Fund

Budgeted Amounts Variance Budgeted Amounts Variance
Positive Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 720,000 720,000 § 719516 § (484) § - 3 - s - 8 -
370,000 370,000 457 445 87,445 - - - -
118,000 118,000 121,435 3,435 - - i o
55,000 55,000 53,735 (1,265) E & & 5
15,000 15,000 29,632 14,632 - - - -
45,800 45,800 45,624 {176) - - - -
326,000 326,000 391,831 65,831 - = = -
521,000 521,000 533,925 12,925 E E - -
13,000 13,000 13,015 15 5 - - -
7,000 7,000 4,451 (2,549) B “ - =
3,000 3,000 3,110 110 - - - =
600 600 758 158 - - - -
1,200 1,200 2,197 997 - - = =
85,000 85,000 88,210 3,210 - # - -
25,000 25,000 28,715 3,715 407,000 407,000 421,590 14,590
4,000 4,000 4,227 227 1,000 1,000 654 (346)
31,000 31,000 23,958 (7,042) 3,240 3,240 2,087 (1,153)
2,340,600 2,340,600 2,521,784 181,184 411,240 411,240 424,331 13,091
327,358 327,358 326,730 628 - - - =
146,800 163,800 159,356 4,444 - - - -
110,495 135,495 97,533 37,962 - = = =
21,000 21,000 12,742 8,258 - s & "
14,263 14,263 10,238 4,025 - - - -
- 6,400 25411 (19,011) s 2 5 -
1,047,746 1,047,748 951,371 96,375 - * - -
53,760 53,760 47,143 6,617 - - - =
51,650 51,650 63,914 (12,264) " - - -
48,600 71,600 74,322 (2,722) G % & w
30,500 30,500 26,550 3,950 - - - =
= 57,000 31,820 25,180 - - - -
139,838 139,838 114,488 25,350 L - - -
26,244 26,244 24,257 1,887 -3 - - -
13,155 13,155 12,233 922 - - - -
48,737 46,737 39,446 7.291 - - - =
28,800 28,800 18,116 10,684 - - - -
- & 5,882 (5,882) - - - -
49,042 49,042 48,359 683 - - - -
27,109 27,109 27,042 67 < - - -
7,500 7,500 11,080 (3,580) - - - -
13,400 13,400 8,064 5,336 - - - -
16,500 16,500 8,213 8,287 - - - -
= = - - 96,6565 96,655 94,852 1,703
- - - - 14,016 14,015 9,093 4,922
- - - - 13,000 13,000 16,936 (3,936)
- - - - 271,470 271,470 263,816 7,654
- - - - 10,000 10,000 6,621 3,379
- - - - 6,100 6,100 4,364 1,736
- & - - # - 2,016 (2,016)
152,678 152,678 152,678 - - - - -
28,563 28,563 14,582 13,981 - - - F
2,401,738 2,530,138 2,311,570 218,568 411,240 411,240 397,798 13,442
(61,138) (189,538) 210,214 399,752 “ - 26,533 26,533
(6,851) (6,:851) (3,388) 3,463 - - 5 ¥
5,000 5,000 92,367 87,367 - - 16,150 16,150
- - 17,187 17,187 - - - -
- - 390,782 390,782 - - - -
(1,851) (1,851) 496,948 108,017 - - 16,150 16,150
(62,989) (191,389) 707,162 898,551 - - 42,683 42,683
1,470,615 1,470,615 1,470,615 - 433,237 433,237 433,237 -
$ 1,407,626 1,279,226 $ 21477777 $ 898,551 $ 433,237 $433,237 $475,920 S 42,683

See notes to the financial statements,
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CITY OF MILLERSVILLE
Statement of Fund Net Position

Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2017

Assets
Current Assets
Cash
Accounts Receivable, Net Allowance of $148,757
Inventory
Prepaid ltems

Total Current Assets

Capital Assets
Property, Plant, and Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets

Other Assets
Net Pension Asset

Total Assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Deferred Pensions

Liahilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages, Payroll Taxes and Payroll Deductions
Accrued Compensated Absences
Due to Other Funds

Total Current Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Pensions

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Other Purposes
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

See notes to the financial statements.
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Enterprise Fund

Sewer Fund

$ 1,140,272
137,708

31,836

1,830

1,311,646

9,311,469
(4,082,358)

5,229,111

21,443

6,562,200

11,728

81,960
4,578
6,668

146,220

239,426

12,696

5,229,111
21,443
1,071,252

$ 6,321,806




CITY OF MILLERSVILLE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Enterprise Fund

Sewer Fund
Operating Revenues
Charges for Services $ 975,472
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Taxes 178,052
Employee Benefits 56,253
Professional/Contractual Services 16,659
Repairs and Maintenance 45,162
Supplies 26,585
Sewer Pretreatment and Treatment 286,337
Meter Reading Fees 11,013
Sewer Transport 104,438
Utility Services 13,560
Depreciation and Amortization 228,709
Miscellaneous 5,185
Other Operating Expenses 23,413
Total Operating Expenses 995,366
Loss from Operations (19,894)
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
Interest Revenue 3,118
Gain on Disposal of Capital Assets 5,140
Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) 8,258
Loss Before Contributions and Transfers (11,636)
Tap and Connection Fees - Contributions 25,925
Transfers (24,495)
Decrease in Net Position (10,206)
Net Position - June 30, 2016 6,332,012

Net Position - June 30, 2017

See notes to the financial statements.

15

$ 6,321,806




CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Enterprise Fund
Sewer Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash Received from Customers $ 1,128,240
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (582,609)
Cash Payments to Employees for Services (238,431)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 307,200
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers to Other Funds (24,495)
Net Cash Used by Noncapital Financing Activities (24,495)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Cash Received from Tap Fees and Connection Fees 25,925
Acquisition of Capital Assets (232,034)
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (206,109)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest Received 3,118
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 3,118
Net Increase in Cash 79,714
Cash at Beginning of Year 1,060,558
Cash at End of Year $ 1,140,272

Reconciliation of Loss from Operations to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities:
Loss from Operations $ (19,894)
Adjustments to Reconcile Loss from Operations to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization 228,709
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 5,140
(Increase) Decrease in:
Accounts Receivable, Net 4,404
Due from Other Funds 67
Inventory (16,052)
Prepaid Items (1,830)
Net Pension Asset (230)
Deferred Outflows - Pensions 402
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable ‘ (32,375)
Accrued Wages, Payroll Taxes and Payroll Deductions 2,389
Accrued Gompensated Absences 3,117
Due to Other Funds 143,157
Deferred Inflows - Pensions (9,804)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 307,200

See notes to the financial statements.
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Note 1.

CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Millersville, Tennessee was incorporated May 28, 1981 under the provisions of
Tennessee Code Annotated, Sections 6-18-101, and held its first organizational meeting on
July 7, 1981. The City operates under a City Manager-Commissioner form of government
and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: Public Safety (fire and
police), Roads and Streets, Public Improvements, Planning and Zoning, and General
Administrative Services.

The City of Millersville’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally -
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). The more significant accounting policies
established in GAAP and used by the City of Millersville are described below.

Reporting Entity

The City of Millersville (“The City”) is a municipality governed by an elected five-member
commission, including a mayor and vice-mayor. These financial statements present the
financial position and activities of the City government only. The City has no component
units, thus no blended or discretely presented component units are included in these financial
statements.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the activities of the City. As a rule, the effect of
interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other changes between the
government's utilities and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific program. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided
by a given program and 2) operating or capital grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Taxes and other
items not property included among program revenues are reported instead as general.

Fund Financial Statements

The City uses funds to report on its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund
accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by
segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a
separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

The City has its funds classified into two categories: governmental and proprietary. Each
category, in turn, is divided into separate “fund types.”
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Note 1.

CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements — Continued

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government’s general activities
including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies (special revenue funds) and
the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets (capital projects funds). The general
fund is used to account for all activities of the general government not accounted for in some
other fund.

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the private sector,
where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial
administration. Goods or services from such activities can be provided either to outside
parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments or agencies primarily within the
government (internal service funds). The following is a list of the City’s funds:

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund — Primary operating fund of the City. This fund is used to account for all
financial transactions and resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. Revenues are derived primarily from property and other local taxes, state and federal
distributions, licenses, permits, charges for service, and interest income.

Special Revenue Funds — Accounts for revenue derived from specific sources (other than
major capital projects) that are restricted by legal and regulatory provisions or committed or
assigned to finance specific activities. The Special Revenue Funds consist of the following:

Solid Waste Fund — Accounts for revenues and expenditures for solid waste collection.
This fund is considered a major fund for reporting purposes.

State Street Aid — Accounts for revenues and expenditures of the City's share of state
gasoline taxes. State law requires that gasoline taxes be used to maintain streets. This
fund is not considered a major fund for reporting purposes.

Drug Fund — Accounts for revenues from drug fines and forfeited goods received. State
law requires usage of those monies to further drug education and investigations. This
fund is not considered a major fund for reporting purposes.

Storm Water Fund — Accounts for revenues and expenditures for storm water system
planning and management. This fund is not considered a major fund for reporting
purposes.

Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise Fund — The Sewer Fund is used to account for the revenues generated from the
charges for sanitary sewer services provided to the residential and commercial users of the
City.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are assessed. Grants and similar items
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met.
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Note 1.

CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting — Continued

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers all revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Those
revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, special assessments,
licenses, interest revenue and charges for services. Fines and permits are not susceptible to
accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on long-term debt
are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the
debt service fund for payments to be made early in the following year. Operating statements
of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases
(i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.
Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the necessary costs to provide the
services including the cost of personnel and contractual services, supplies and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City uses the modified accrual basis for budgetary accounting in government funds and
full accrual basis for budgetary accounting in proprietary funds and has established
procedures with regard to the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements. Prior to
June 30, the proposed operating budgets are presented to the commission for their approval.
The budget is legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance which also sets the tax
rate. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budget amounts between line items within
the various categories in the individual funds; however, any revisions that alter the total
appropriations of any fund require commission action.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City defines its cash and cash equivalents to include only cash on hand, demand
deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition, including restricted cash. State statutes authorize the City to invest in
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certificates of deposit, certain federal nonconvertible debt
securities, repurchase agreements and the State Treasurer's Investment Pool. Cash
equivalents are stated at cost. Any unspent proceeds from debt is included in restricted
cash.

Inventories and Prepaid ltems

Inventory for both governmental and proprietary funds, consisting principally of materials and
supplies held for consumption, are valued at cost, approximating market value, using first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental funds inventories are recorded as
expenditures when consumed, rather than when purchased. Certain payments to vendors
reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in
both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is
recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. The
inventories and prepaid items recorded in the governmental funds do not reflect current
appropriable resources and, thus, an equivalent portion of fund balance is reported as
nonspendable.
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Note 1.

CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial statements for proprietary
funds. General infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2003, are not reported in the
basic financial statements. General infrastructure assets include all roads and bridges and
other infrastructure assets acquired subsequent to July 1, 2003. All capital assets are valued
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical is not available. Donated
assets are valued at their fair market value on the date donated. Repairs and maintenance
are recorded as expenses.

Assets capitalized, not including infrastructure assets, have an original cost of $5,000 or
more and a useful life of more than three years. Depreciation has been calculated on each
class of depreciable property using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Estimated Useful
Life (Years)

Buildings 40
Improvements 40
Machinery & Equipment 2-20
Sewer Trunk Lines 50

Outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized, as projects are constructed, in
accordance with the City’s capitalization policy. Interest and indirect costs incurred during
the construction phase of capital assets of proprietary funds are reflected in the capitalized
value of the asset constructed. Depreciation/amortization expense is allocated to functions/
programs and included as a direct expense in the Statement of Activities. Capital assets that
are under construction or development and have not been completed are put into
Construction in Progress and are presented as a capital asset not being depreciated on the
Statement of Net Position. Property under capital leases is stated at the lower of present
value of minimum lease payments or the fair market value at the inception of the lease.
Once placed in service, such property is amortized using the straight-line method over the
remaining lease term.

Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick
pay benefits. Individuals employed on or before November 17, 1998 may accrue up to three
weeks of vacation time. Employees who began or renewed their employment after
November 17, 1998 earn vacation time as follows:

Completed Months Weeks Earned
of Service Per Year
12-24 1
25-96 2
97 -180 3
Over 180 4

Sick leave accrues at the rate of one-half day per month with a maximum accumulation of
180 days. Upon the termination of employment, an employee is paid his/her unused vacation
time.
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Note 1.

CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Compensated Absences — Continued

The compensated absences liability attributable to the governmental activities will be
liquidated primarily by the General Fund.

Interfund Balances and Transfers

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “Due to/ Due from Other
Funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the
non-current portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as “internal balances.”

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially
made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/
expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund
that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and
reimbursements, are reported as transfers.

Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liabilities consist of notes, and other indebtedness including liabilities associated
with compensated absences and postretirement benefits.

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net assets.

In the fund financial statements, long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental
fund when due, or when resources have been accumulated in the debt service fund for
payment early in the following year. For other long-term obligations, only that portion
expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund
liability of a governmental fund. Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary
fund operations are accounted for in those funds.

Property Tax

Taxes are levied on October 1 each year and are due and payable on or before February 28
of the following year. All unpaid taxes become delinquent March 1 of the following year. The
City bills and collects its own property taxes. City property tax revenues are recognized
when levied. An allowance is established for delinquent taxes to the extent that their
collectability is improbable.

Under the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards, Section N50, Nonexchange Transactions, property taxes are imposed
nonexchange revenue. Assets (accounts receivable) from imposed nonexchange trans-
actions are recorded when the City has an enforceable legal claim to the asset. The
enforceable legal claim date for property taxes is the assessment date. The assessment
date has been designated in the enabling legislation as of January 1. Therefore, the City has
recorded the succeeding year's receivable and deferred inflow of resources for taxes
assessed as of year-end that will not be received until after year-end.
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Note 1.

CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the City's participation in the public Employee Retirement Plan of
the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS), and additions to/deductions from
the City's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by the TCRS for the Public Employee Retirement Plan. For this purpose, benefits
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms of the Public Employee Retirement Plan of TCRS.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Fund Balance

The City classifies fund balances in accordance with the GASB Codification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 1800.165, Fund Balance Reporting.
The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints as
defined in the City’s fund balance policy:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either in
a (a) non-spendable form, including items not expected to be converted to cash (i.e.,
inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term portion of loans and notes receivable and
property acquired for resale), or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact (i.e., principal of permanent funds).

Restricted Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to be used for a specific purpose as per
external parties, constitutional provision, or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to be used for a specific purpose as
per action by the Board of Commissioners (by ordinance). Amounts classified as
committed are not subject to legal enforceability like restricted resources; however, they
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board removes or changes the
commitment by taking the same action it employed to impose the commitment.

Assighed Fund Balance — Amounts intended to be used by the City for a specific
purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed. The intent shall be expressed by the
Board of Commissioners or a designee authorized by the Board of Commissioners for a
specific purpose in accordance with policy established by the Board of Commissioners.
The nature of the actions necessary to remove or modify an assignment is not as rigid as
required under a committed fund balance classification. It does not require formal action.
This classification includes the remaining positive fund balance for all governmental
funds except for the General Fund.

Unassighed Fund Balance — Amounts available for any purpose (amounts that are not
nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned) in the General Fund. It represents the
resources available for future spending. This classification includes negative residual
fund balances of any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of
assigned fund balance amounts. An appropriate level of unassigned fund balance
should be maintained in the General Fund in order to cover unexpected expenditures
and revenue shortfalls.
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Note 1.

Note 2.

CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Fund Balance — Continued

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
(committed, assigned or unassigned) amounts are available, it shall be the policy of the City
to use the restricted amounts. first as permitted under the law. When an expenditure is
incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used, it shall be the policy of the City to use the committed amounts
first, followed by the assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources
less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Government-wide and proprietary fund net
position are divided into three components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — consist of the historical cost of capital assets less
accumulated depreciation and less any debt that remains outstanding that was used to
finance those assets plus deferred outflows of resources less deferred inflows of
resources related to those assets.

Restricted Net Position — consist of assets that are restricted by the City's creditors (for
example, through debt covenants), by the state enabling legislation (through restrictions
on shared revenues), by grantors (both federal and state), and by other contributors
(including those who have donated to the City less related liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources). Restrictions from enabling legislation include the State Street Aid Fund,
Solid Waste Fund, Storm Water Fund and Drug Fund.

Unrestricted — all other net position is reported in this category.

When an expense is incurred for the purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted net
position are available, the City's policy is to first apply restricted resources.

Contributions of Capital

Contributions of capital in the proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside
contributions of capital assets, tap-in fees to the extent they exceed the cost of the
connection to the system, or from grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to
capital acquisition and construction. These contributions are recognized as revenue.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from
those estimates.

Cash and Investments

The City has no formal deposit and investment policies other than those prescribed by State
of Tennessee statute and explained below.

Deposits in financial institutions are required by State statute to be secured and collateralized
by the institutions. The collateral must meet certain requirements and must have a total
minimum market value of 105% of the value of the deposits placed in the institutions, less the
amount protected by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance (FDIC). Collateral
requirements are not applicable for financial institutions that participate in the State of
Tennessee's collateral pool.
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Note 2.

Note 3.

Note 4.

CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2017

Cash and Investments — Continued

All of the City’s deposits and investments were held by financial institutions which participate
in the bank collateral pool administered by the Treasurer of the State of Tennessee.
Participating banks in the bank collateral pool determine the aggregate balance of their public
fund accounts. The amount of collateral required to secure these public deposits must be at
least 105% of the average daily balance of public deposits held. Collected securities
required to be pledged by the participant banks to protect their public fund accounts are
pledged to the State Treasurer on behalf of the bank collateral pool. The securities pledged
to protect these accounts are pledged in the aggregate rather than against each individual
account. The members of the pool may be required by agreement to pay an assessment to
cover any deficiency. Under the additional assessment agreement, public fund accounts
covered by the pool are considered to be insured for purposes of custodial credit risk
disclosure.

Property Taxes Receivable

Gross property taxes receivable of $937,459 (allowance for doubtful accounts is $26,151) are
summarized, by year, on the Schedule of Changes in Property Taxes Receivable on page 39
of this report.

Interfund Balances and Transfers
The composition of interfund balances is as follows:

Due From
General Solid Waste Storm Water
Due To Fund Fund Fund Sewer Fund Total
General Fund $ - % 19,814 $ 33,083 § 42416 § 95313
Solid Waste Fund - - - 76,214 76,214
State Street Aid Fund 25,893 - - - 25,893
Drug Fund 845 - - - 845
Storm Water Fund - - - 27,590 27,590
Total $ 26,738 % 19,814 § 33,083 $ 146,220 $ 225,855

All balances are scheduled to be collected in the subsequent year. All balances resulted from
the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system,
and (3) payments between funds are made. These amounts do not represent loans.

Interfund transfers during the year were as follows:

Transfer From

General
Transfer To Fund Sewer Fund Total
General Fund $ - § 24495 § 24,495
State Street Aid Fund 27,883 - 27,883
Total $ 27,883 $ 24495 $ 52,378

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to
collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts
restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as
debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the
general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations.
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CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2017
Note 5. Capital Assets
The following is a summary of the changes in capital assets:

Balance Balance
6/30/2016 Additions  Disposals 6/30/2017

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets not being Depreciated

Land $ 728,821 % - $ 125020 $ 603,801

Construction in Progress 41,134 5,038 - 46,172
Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated $ 769955 $ 5038 $ 125020 §$ 649,973
Capital Assets being Depreciated

Buildings & Improvements $ 4065352 § 15,038 $ - $ 4,080,390

Equipment & Furniture 1,112,509 5,882 5,011 1,113,380

Vehicles 1,588,061 239,610 266,882 1,560,789

Property under Capital Lease 132,996 - - 132,996
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated 6,898,918 260,530 271,893 6,887,555
Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings & Improvements ’ 1,073,768 195,944 - 1,269,712

Equipment & Furniture 674,477 62,219 5,011 731,685

Vehicles 1,203,463 119,674 249,834 1,073,303
Total Accumulated Depreciation 2,951,708 377,837 254,845 3,074,700
Total Governmental Activities, Net $ 4717165 $ (112,269) $ 142,068 $ 4,462,828

Business-type Activities
Capital Assets not being Depreciated

Land $ 47268 $ - 3 - % 47,268
Capital Assets being Depreciated

Buildings & Improvements $ 95838 $ 2,016 $ - % 97,854

Equipment & Furniture 151,709 134,333 21,756 264,286

Vehicles 243,963 - 12,750 231,213

Sewer Collections 8,575,162 95,686 - 8,670,848
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated 9,066,672 232,035 34,506 9,264,201
Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings & Improvements 55,550 2,406 - 57,956

Equipment & Furniture 145,232 9,712 21,756 133,188

Vehicles 236,820 3,726 12,750 227,796

Sewer Collections 3,450,553 212,865 - 3,663,418
Total Accumulated Depreciation 3,888,155 228,709 34,506 4,082,358
Total Business-type Activities, Net $ 5225785 % 3326 § - $ 5229111

Depreciation Expense hy Function

General Government $ 36,791
Public Safety 84,090
State Street Aid 144,810
Parks & Recreation 84,706
Solid Waste 27,208
Storm Water 232
$ 377,837
Sewer 8 228709
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Note 6.

CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2017

Pension Plan
General Information

Plan Description

Employees of the City are provided a defined benefit pension plan through the Public
Employee Retirement Plan, an agent multiple-employer pension plan administered by the
TCRS. The TCRS was created by state statute under Tennessee Code Annotated Title 8,
Chapters 34-37. The TCRS Board of Trustees is responsible for the proper operation and
administration of the TCRS. The Tennessee Treasury Department, an agency in the
legislative branch of state government, administers the plans of the TCRS. The TCRS issues
a publically available financial report that can be obtained at www.treasury.tn.govi/tcrs.

Benefits Provided

Tennessee Code Annotated Title 8, Chapters 34-37 establishes the benefit terms and can be
amended only by the Tennessee General Assembly. The chief legislative body may adopt
the benefit terms permitted by statute. Members are eligible to retire with an unreduced
benefit at age 60 with 5 years of service credit or after 30 years of service credit regardless of
age. Benefits are determined by a formula using the member's highest five consecutive year
average compensation and the member's years of service credit. Reduced benefits for early
retirement are available at age 55 and vested. Members vest with five years of service
credit. Service related disability benefits are provided regardless of length of service. Five
years of service is required for non-service related disability eligibility. The service related
and non-service related disability benefits are determined in the same manner as a service
retirement benefit but are reduced 10 percent and include projected service credits. A variety
of death benefits are available under various eligibility criteria.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
At the measurement date of June 30, 2016, the following employees were covered by the
benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 5
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 62
Active employees 30
97

Contributions

Contributions for employees are established in the statutes governing the TCRS and may
only be changed by the Tennessee General Assembly. Employees contribute 5 percent of
salary. The City makes employer contributions at the rate set by the Board of Trustees as
determined by an actuarial valuation. For the year ended June 30, 2017, the contributions for
the City were $55,544 based on a rate of 4.44 percent of covered payroll. By law, employer
contributions are required to be paid. The TCRS may intercept the City’s state shared taxes
if required employer contributions are not remitted. The employer's actuarially determined
contribution (ADC) and member contributions are expected to finance the costs of benefits
earned by members during the year, the cost of administration, as well as an amortized
portion of any unfunded liability.

Net Pension Liability (Asset)

The City’s net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total
pension liability used to calculate net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.
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Note 6.

CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2017

Pension Plan — Continued

Net Pension Liability (Asset) — Continued

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability as of June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3%

Salary Increases Graded salary ranges from 8.97% to 3.71% based on age,
including inflation, averaging 4.25%

Investment Rate of Return 7.5%, net of investment expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on actual experience from the June 30, 2012 actuarial experience
study adjusted for some of the expected future improvement in life expectancy.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study performed for the period July 1, 2008 through June
30, 2012. The demographic assumptions were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and
expected future experience.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was established by the
TCRS Board of Trustees in conjunction with the June 30, 2012 actuarial experience study by
considering the following three techniques: (1) the 25-year historical return of the TCRS at
June 30, 2012, (2) the historical market returns of asset classes from 1926 to 2012 using the
TCRS investment policy asset allocation, and (3) capital market projections that were utilized
as a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. Four sources of capital market projections were
blended and utilized in the third techniqgue. The blended capital market projection
established the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding inflation of 3 percent. The
target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected Target
Asset Class Real Rate of Return Allocation

U.S. Equity 6.46% 33%
Developed Market International Equity 6.26% 17%
Emerging Market International Equity 6.40% 5%
Private Equity and Strategic Lending 461% 8%
U.S. Fixed Income 0.98% 29%
Real Estate 4.73% %
Short-Term Securities 0.00% 1%
100%

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was established by the
TCRS Board of Trustees as 7.5 percent based on a blending of the three factors described
ahove.
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Note 6.

CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2017

Pension Plan — Continued
Net Pension Liability (Asset) — Continued

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5 percent. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will
be made at the current rate and that contributions from the City will be made at the actuarially
determined contribution rate pursuant to an actuarial valuation in accordance with the funding
policy of the TCRS Board of Trustees and as required to be paid by state statute. Based on
those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive members. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods
of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance at 6/30/15 $ 1,637,636 $ 1,849,314 $ (211,678)
Changes for the Year:

Service Cost 66,194 - 66,194

Interest 126,671 - 126,671

Differences Between Expected and Actual

Experience (31,787) - (31,787)

Contributions - Employer - 54,230 (54,230)

Contributions - Employee - 61,070 (61,070)

Net Investment Income - 50,162 (50,162)

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of

Employee Contributions (29,754) (29,754) -

Administrative Expense - (2,387) 2,387
Net Changes 131,324 133,321 (1,997)
Balance at 6/30/16 $ 1,768,960 $ 1,982,635 $ (213,675)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability (asset) of the City calculated using the
discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the net pension liability (asset) would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.5 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.5 percent) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 27,862 $ (213,675) $ (413,159)
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Note 6.

CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2017

Pension Plan — Continued

Negative Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

Negative Pension Expense
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized negative pension expense of

$27,965.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources

Differences Between Expected and

Actual Experience $ 28,729 $ 142,163
Net Difference Between Projected and

Actual Earnings of Pension Plan

Investments 65,965 -

Contributions Subsequent to the

Measurement Date of June 30, 2016 55,544 (Not applicable)
3 150,238 $ 142,163

The amount shown above for “Contributions subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2016,”
will be recognized as a reduction (increase) to net pension liability (asset) in the following measurement
period.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Amount
2018 $ (20,330)
2019 (20,330)
2020 7,193
2021 (8,703)
2022 (5,298)
Thereafter -

In the table shown above, positive amounts will increase pension expense while negative amount will
decrease pension expense.

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2017, the City had no payable balances for the outstanding amount of
contributions to the pension plan required at the year ended June 30, 2017.
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CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2017

Note 7. Long-Term Debt

A. Governmental Activities

The following is a summary of changes to long-term liabilities in the Governmental activities
during the year:

Balance Balance Due Within
6/30/2016 Additions Reductions 6/30/2017 1 Year
Compensated Absences § 42448 § 41513 § 42448 $ 41513 § 41513

Notes Payable $ 749,654 $ 390,782 $ 119,000 $ 1,021,436 $ 157,842
Capital Lease 98,681 - 33,678 65,003 31,984
Totals $ 848,335 $ 390,782 $ 152,678  $ 1,086,439 $ 189,826

Long-term debt and obligations payable are comprised of the following:

Note Payable to a Bank for the Community Center, Original Amount of
$1.4 million, Bearing Interest at LIBOR plus 1.152% Per Annum,
Payable in Monthly Installments of $12,102, with the Final Payment Due
March 2022. $ 630,654

Capital Lease Payable to a Bank for Four Dodge Charger Police
Vehicles, Original Amount of $132,996, Bearing Interest at 3.4% Per
Annum, Payable in Annual Installments of $34,240 with the Final
Payment Due August 2018. 65,003

Note Payable to a Bank for a Fire Engine, Original Amount of $390,782,
Bearing Interest at 2.88% Per Annum, Payable in Annual Installments
Between $34,277 and $44,257, with the Final Payment Due July 2027.

The Fire Engine is Under Construction at Year-end. 390,782
1,086,439

Less Current Portion (189,826)
Total Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt $ 896,613

Below is a condensed government-wide schedule of maturities for notes payable. A detailed
Schedule of Long-term Debt, Principal, and Interest Requirements are included on page 38
of this report.

Total
Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest
2018 $ 155549 § 35,166
2019 195,600 28,329
2020 168,490 21,246
2021 174,616 15,091
2022 144,547 8,823
2023-2027 203,380 18,420
2028 44 257 -
Total $ 1,086,439 § 127,075
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CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2017
Note 7. Long-Term Debt — Continued
B. Business-type Activities
The following is a summary of changes to long-term debt in the Business-type activities
during the year:

Balance Balance Due Within
6/30/2016 Additions Reductions 6/30/2017 1 Year

Compensated Absences $ 3,551 $ 6,668 $ 3,551 $ 6,668 $ 6,668

Note 8. Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all employees at their option,
permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred
compensation is not available to participants until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency. The plan does allow loans. The plan’s investments are held in
trust by TCRS. The City does not match employee deferrals.

Note 9. Contracts

The City has contracts and/or agreements with the City of Goodlettsville, Department of
Water Services of Metropolitan Nashville, Nashville Electric Service, Cumberland Electric
Membership Corporation, Piedmont Natural Gas, White House Ultility District and Waste
Industries to provide utility and solid waste services in Sumner and Robertson counties.
These providers, with the exception of Waste Industries, are sole-source suppliers for utility
services. The City is a member of the Cumberland River Water Improvement Authority, a
regional wastewater authority.

Note 10. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
The City participates in the Tennessee Municipal League Risk Management Pool (TMLRMP),
a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance
program for municipalities. The City pays an annual premium to the TMLRMP for its
insurance coverage. The TMLRMP is self-sustaining through member premiums and will
reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of $1,000,000 for each insured
event. Settled claims of the City have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years.

31



CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Required Supplementary Information**

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and
Related Ratios Based on Participation in the

Public Employee Pension Plan of TCRS
Last Fiscal Year ending June 30,

Total Pension Liability (Asset)
Service Cost
Interest
Changes in Benefit Terms
Differences Between Actual & Expected Experience
Change of Assumptions
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions
Net Change in Total Pension Liability
Total Pension Liability (Asset) - Beginning
Total Pension Liability (Asset) - Ending (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Employee
Net Investment Income
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions
Administrative Expense
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)

Net Pension Liability (Asset) - Ending (a) - (b)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total Pension Liability (Asset)

Covered Payroll

Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

2014 2015 2016

72,983 66,903 66,194
122,231 115,238 126,671
(202,428) 43,093 (31,787)
(45,473) (114,401) (29,754)
(52,687) 110,833 131,324
1,579,490 1,526,803 1,637,636
1,526,803 1,637,636 1,768,960
60,091 50,556 54,230
59,145 56,933 61,071
251,222 55,381 50,162
(45,473) (114,401) (29,754)
(1,108) (1,472) (2,387)
323,877 46,997 133,322
1,478,440 1,802,316 1,849,313
1,802,316 1,849,313 1,982,635
(275,513) (211,677) (213,675)
118.05% 112.93% 112.08%
1,182,887 1,138,659 1,221,399
(23.29%) (18.59%) (17.49%)

** GASB 68 requires a 10-year schedule for this data to be presented with the implementation of GASB 68. The information in this schedule is not required to be
presented retroactively prior to the implementation date, Please refer to previously supplied data from TCRS GASB website for prior years' data, if needed.

See independent auditor's report.

32



CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Required Supplementary Information**
Schedule of Contributions
Based on Participation in the Public Employee Pension Plan of TCRS
Last Fiscal Year ending June 30,

2014 2015 2016 2017
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 60,091 $ 50,556 $ 54,230 $ 55,544
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined
Contribution 60,091 50,556 54,230 55,544
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 5 = $ - $ - $ =
Covered Payroll $ 1,182,887 $ 1,138,659 $ 1,221,399 $ 1,250,479
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 5.08% 4.44% 4.44% 4.44%

= GASB 68 requires a 10-year schedule for this data to be presented with the implementation of GASB 68. The information in this schedule
is not required to be presented retroactively prior to the implementation date. Please refer to previously supplied data from TCRS GASB
website for prior years' data, if needed.

Notes to Schedule

Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contribution rates for 2017 were calculated based on the June 30, 2015 actuarial
valuation.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level dollar, closed (not to exceed 20 years)

Remaining Amortization Period Various

Asset Valuation 10-year smoothed within a 20 percent corridor to market value

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary Increases Graded salary ranges from 8.97 to 3.71 percent based on age,
including inflation, averaging 4.25 percent

Investment Rate of Return 7.5 percent, net of investment expense, including inflation

Retirement Age Pattern of retirement determined by experience study

Mortality Customized table based on actual experience including an
adjustment for some anticipated improvement

Cost of Living Adjustments Not provided

See independent auditor's report.
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Cash
Receivables, Net

Due From Other Funds

Inventory
Restricted Cash

Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Due To Other Funds

Other Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Nonspendable - Inventory

Restricted For:

State Street Aid
Drug Education and Investigations

Storm Water

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Combining Balance Sheet

Non-major Gavernmental Funds

June 30, 2017

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Special Revenue Funds Total
State Non-major
Street Drug Storm Water Governmental
Aid Fund Fund Funds
$ 398,947 $ 50483 % 32,925 5 482,355
- - 21,727 21,727
25,893 845 27,590 54,328
2,630 - - 2,630
- 10,979 - 10,979
§ 427470 § 62,307 § 82,242 $ 572,019
$ 4674 § - § 12,481 $ 17,155
- - 33,083 33,083
- 10,979 - 10,979
4,674 10,879 45,564 61,217
2,630 - - 2,630
420,166 - - 420,166
- 51,328 - 51,328
- - 36,678 36,678
422,796 51,328 36,678 510,802
$ 427470 $ 62307 § 82,242 $ 572,019

See independent auditor's report.
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CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Special Revenue Funds Total
State Non-major
Street Drug Storm \Water Governmental
Aid Fund Fund Funds
Revenues
Licenses and Permits $ - 3 - % 1,150 § 1,150
Drug and Gambling Revenue - 43,454 - 43,454
Intergovernmental Revenues 188,060 - - 188,060
Charges for Services - - 154,018 154,018
Interest Income 494 40 52 586
Miscellaneous Revenues - 40 650 690
Total Revenues 188,554 43,534 155,870 387,958
Expenditures
Current:
State Street Aid 85,791 - - 85,791
Drug Fund - 16,789 - 16,789
Storm Water - - 144,900 144,900
Capital Outlay 7,054 - 14,595 21,649
Total Expenditures 92,845 16,789 159,495 269,129
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 95,709 26,745 (3,625) 118,829
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 27,883 - - 27,883
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 953 - - 953
Total Other Financing Saurces (Uses) 28,836 - - 28,836
Net Change in Fund Balances 124,545 26,745 (3,625) 147,665
Fund Balances - June 30, 2016 298,251 24 583 40,303 363,137
Fund Balances - June 30, 2017 § 422796 § 51328 § 36,678 § 510,802

See independent auditor's report.
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CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Schedule of Long-Term Debt, Principal, and Interest Requirements
By Fiscal Year
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year  Regions Note Payable = Magnolia Bank, Inc. First Tennessee Note

Ended Community Center Police Vehicles Payable Fire Engine Total
June 30, Principal  Interest Principal _Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2018 $ 123,565 $21,655 $ 31,984 § 2,256 $ - §11,255 $ 155549 § 35,166
2019 128,304 16,915 33,019 1,147 34,277 10,267 195,600 28,329
2020 133,226 11,994 - - 35,264 9,252 168,490 21,246
2021 138,336 6,884 - - 36,280 8,207 174,616 15,091
2022 107,223 1,691 - B 37,324 7.132 144,547 8,823
2023 - - » - 38,399 6,026 38,399 6,026
2024 - - - - 39,505 4,888 39,505 4,888
2025 - - - - 40,643 3,718 40,643 3,718
2026 - - - - 41,814 2,513 41,814 2,513
2027 - - - - 43,019 1,275 43,019 1,275
2028 - - - - 44,257 - 44,257 -
Total $ 630,654 $59,139 $ 65,003 $ 3,403 $ 390,782 $64,533 $ 1,086,439 $127,075

See independent auditor's report.
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CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Schedule of Changes in Property Taxes Receivable
June 30, 2017

Property Tax Property Tax
Receivable Anticipated Abatements Receivable

Year Balance Property Tax Current Year and Balance

of Levy 6/30/2016 Levied Levy Adjustments Collections Write-Offs 6/30/2017
2017 $ - $ - $ 853,455 $ - $ - 3 - $ 853,455
2016 715,586 * 943 * - - 680,562 - 35,967
2015 34,177 - - - 22,078 - 12,099
2014 12,360 - - - 4,098 - 8,262
2013 6,251 - - - 1,083 - 5,168
2012 5,016 - - - 205 - 4,811
2011 3,663 - - - 189 - 3,474
2010 3,304 - - - 274 - 3,030
2009 4,319 - - - 274 - 4,045
2008 3,200 - - - 199 - 3,001
2007 4,147 - - - - - 4,147
2006 2,783 - - - - 2,783 -
Totals $ 794,806 $ 943 $ 853,455 $ - $ 708,962 $ 2,783 $ 937,459

*This represents the anticipated levy in the prior year adjusted to the actual levy in the current year.

See independent auditor's repori.
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CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE

Schedule of Property Tax Rates and Assessments

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Tax Rate Tax Rate
Year of Fiscal Per $100 Per $100 Tax

Levy Year Sumner Robertson Assessment

2017 2018 1.0000 1.0000 $ 853,455
2016 2017 0.8443 0.8443 $ 715,586
2015 2016 0.8443 0.8443 $ 712,874
2014 2015 0.8443 0.8443 $ 711,850
2013 2014 0.8113 0.8113 $ 707,765
2012 2013 0.7992 0.8248 $ 709,237
2011 2012 0.7992 0.8248 $ 705,002
2010 2011 0.7992 0.8248 $ 706,015
2009 2010 0.7992 0.8248 $ 705,162
2008 2009 0.8600 0.8600 $ 694,830

* Anticipated Levy as of June 30, 2017

See independent auditor's report.
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CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Utility Rate Structure and Number of Customers
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

At June 30, 2017, the rate structure for the City of Millersville's Sewer Fund was as follows:

Residential (per billing cycle)

First 1,500 Gallons $14.54 (minimum bill)

All Over 1,500 Gallons $6.02 per 1,000 gallons

Househaold on Well $31.68 flat rate
Commercial (per hilling cycle)

First 1,500 Gallons $14.54 (minimum bill)

All Over 1,500 Gallons $6.02 per 1,000 gallons
Motels, Hotels and Campgrounds $9.55 per 1.000 gallons

At June 30, 2017, the sewer system had approximately 2,342 customers.

See independent auditor's report.
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BLANKENSHIP CPA GROUP, PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
With Government Auditing Standards

To the Members of the City Commission
City of Millersville, Tennessee

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Millersville (the
City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 6,
2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

1000 Northchase Drive, Suite 260 » Goodlettsville, TN 37072 » 615-859-8800



Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

M CPA G'OLf’/ PecC

April 6, 2018
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City of Millersville
Schedule of Prior Year Findings
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Financial Statement Findings

Finding Number Finding Title Status

2016-001 Internal Control Policies and Procedures Corrected

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding Number Finding Title Status

N/A N/A N/A
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CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
ORDINANCE 18-693

AN ORDINANCE TO REZONE 2044 WILSON LANE, ROBERTSON
COUNTY MAP 125 PARCEL 226.00, FROM RESIDENTIAL R-1 AND
COMMERCIAL C-3 TO RESIDENTIAL R-5 AND COMMERCIAL C-3;
AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHERIEAS, a single parcel of land, identified as Robertson County Map 125 Parcel 226.00, is
currently zoned a mixture of Residential District R-1 and Commercial District C-3; and

WHEREAS, the owner of this parcel requests the City rezone certain portions of this property to
Residential R-5 and Commercial C-3; and

WHEREAS, the proposed zoning designations are complimentary to other zoning designations
in the vicinity; and

WHEREAS, it is in the City of Millersville’s best interest to rezone this particular parcel to
allow for the highest and best use; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission voted by majority to recommend to the City
Commission the rezoning of this parcel to Residential R-5 and Commercial C-3 on October 10,
2017.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the City of
Millersville, Tennessee, that:

SECTION 1. The single parcel within the City of Millersville, Tennessee specifically identified
by 2044 Wilson Lane, Robertson County Map 125 Parcel 226.00 is hereby rezoned from
Residential R-1 and Commercial C-3 to Residential R-5 and Commercial C-3. (Legal
Descriptions of each respective portion of the parcel attached hereto as part of the Ordinance)

SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage, the public
welfare requiring it.

Passed First Reading:

Public Hearing:

Passed Second Reading:

Ord 18-693



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

By:

Timothy F. Lassiter, Mayor
Attest:

By:

Holly L. Murphy, City Recorder

Approved as to form and legality:

By:

Robert G. Wheeler, Jr., City Attorney

Ord 18-693



Legal Descriptions for portions of RC Map 125 Parcel 226.00

These descriptions were prepared solely for the purposes for re-zoning and are based on the J.W.
Nash Subdivision, dated June 06, 1999, of record in Plat Book 11, Page 46 in the Register’s
Office of Robertson County, Tennessee. No surveying was conducted in the preparation of the
descriptions and these descriptions should not relied upon for property conveyance.

Augustino Lot 2 Portion 2A (Cycle Lane), Proposed Commercial C-3 Zoning

Being a portion of Lot 2 of the J.W. Nash Subdivision of Robertson County, Tennessee,
conveyed to Bridgett Augustino by deed of record in Record Book 1652, Page 296, in the
Register’s office of Robertson County Tennessee, and being more particular described as
follows:

BEGINNING at the northwest corner of Lot 2 of the J.W. Nash Subdivision, of which the herein
described property is a portion of and reported as an iron pin on the subdivision plat, and being
in the south line of Cycle Lane; runs thence with Cycle Lane South 69 Degrees 53 Minutes 35
Seconds East, 311.39 Feet to the northeast corner of Lot 2, reported as an iron pin on subdivision
plat; thence with the east line of Lot 2 South 21 Degrees 35 Minutes 30 Seconds West, 99.04
Feet to a fence post as reported on the subdivision plat; thence North 84 Degrees 17 Minutes 59
Seconds West, passing through a eastern corner of Lot 2, reported as a fence post, for a total
distance of 295.46 Feet to the west line of Lot 2; thence with the west line of Lot 2 North 12
Degrees 37 Minutes 34 Seconds East, 174.00 Feet to the Point of Beginning and containing 0.94
acres more or less, as described by Ryan W. Beasley, Tennessee Registered Land Surveyor
2821, of L.I. Smith and Associates, 1100 Lebanon Pike, Suite 105, Nashville, TN 37211, on
March 30, 2018. Record bearings are based upon the plat of record in Plat Book 11, Page 46.

Augustino Lot 2 Portion 2B (Wilson Lane), Proposed Residential R-5 Zoning

Being a portion of Lot 2 of the J.W. Nash Subdivision of Robertson County, Tennessee,
conveyed to Bridgett Augustino by deed of record in Record Book 1652, Page 296, in the
Register’s office of Robertson County Tennessee, and being more particular described as
follows:

BEGINNING at the southwest corner of Lot 2 of the J.W. Nash Subdivision, of which the herein
described property is a portion of and reported as a fence post on the subdivision plat, and being
in the north line of Wilson Lane; runs thence with the east line of Lot 2 North 12 Degrees 37
Minutes 34 Seconds East, 169.04 Feet; thence leaving the west line of Lot 2 South 84 Degrees
17 Minutes 59 Seconds East, 92.01 Feet to an eastern corner of Lot 2, reported as a fence post on
the subdivision plat; thence with the east line of Lot 2 South 15 Degrees 46 Minutes 01 Seconds
West, 179.93 Feet to the southeast corner of Lot 2, reported as a fence post, in north line of
Wilson Lane; thence with Wilson Lane North 77 Degrees 42 Minutes 15 Seconds West, 81.48
Feet to the Point of Beginning and containing 0.35 acres more or less, as described by Ryan W.
Beasley, Tennessee Registered Land Surveyor 2821, of L.I. Smith and Associates, 1100 Lebanon
Pike, Suite 105, Nashville, TN 37211, on March 30, 2018. Record bearings are based upon the
J.W. Nash Subdivision of record in Plat Book 11, Page 46.

Ord 18-693



City of Millersville
Development Services

Summary & Recommendation

Date: April 17, 2018
Reviewer: Michael Barr, Development Services Director

Subject: Rezoning of 2044 Wilson Lane from (RC Map 125 Parcel 226.00) from C-3 & R-1 to
C-3 and R-5.

Background: The Applicant is requesting to rezone the subject parcel from a mixture of
Commercial C-3 and Residential R-1 to a mixture of Commercial C-3 and Residential R-5. The
subject parcel is located between Wilson Lane and Cycle Lane. The applicant is proposing to
divide the zoning of the 1.28 acre parcel with 0.35 ac +/- abutting Wilson Lane as R-5 and the
remaining 0.94 +/- fronting Cycle Lane as C-3.

The parcel is located in both Robertson and Sumner Counties. The parcel was divided into 2
Zoning Districts in 1999 when the City approved the Official Zoning Map. The line separating
the two Zoning Districts appears to follow the County Line. This parcel lies in the vicinity that
transitions from Commercial and Light Industrial & General Office Districts to the large lot
Residential R-1 District. Please note that there are non-conforming, but allowed, residential
uses on several of the Commercial zoned parcels in the area. The easterly abutting 1 ac parcel
was rezoned to R-3 in 2013. With the exception of the White House Utility District’'s water tanks
directly across Wilson Lane from the subject parcel, most of the parcels south of Wilson Lane
are both zoned and utilized as Residential with nearly all parcels greater than 5 acres (R-1)
each.

Attachments: Area Map with current Zoning Designations
Parcel Map with proposed Zoning: Designations

Public Notice Sign Posted: Yes

Recommendation: Approval by the City Commission to rezone portions of this parcel to
Residential R-5 and Commercial C-3.

Conditions, if any: None

The City of Millersville 1246 Louisville Hwy, Millersville, TN 37072
615-859-0880 www.cityofmillersville.com




Legal Deseriptions for portions of RC Map 125 Parcel 226.00

These descriptions were prepared solely for the purposes for re-zoning and are based on the J.W.
Nash Subdivision, dated June 06, 1999, of record in Plat Book 11, Page 46 in the Register’s
Office of Robertson County, Tennessee. No surveying was conducted in the preparation of the
descriptions and these descriptions should not relied upon for property conveyance.

Augustino Lot 2 Portion 2A (Cycle Lane), Proposed Commercial C-3 Zoning

Being a portion of Lot 2 of the J.W. Nash Subdivision of Robertson County, Tennessee,
conveyed to Bridgett Augustino by deed of record in Record Book 1652, Page 296, in the
Register’s office of Robertson County Tennessee, and being more particular described as
follows:

BEGINNING at the northwest corner of Lot 2 of the J.W. Nash Subdivision, of which the herein
described property is a portion of and reported as an iron pin on the subdivision plat, and being
in the south line of Cycle Lane; runs thence with Cycle Lane South 69 Degrees 53 Minutes 35
Seconds East, 311.39 Feet to the northeast corner of Lot 2, reported as an iron pin on subdivision
plat; thence with the east line of Lot 2 South 21 Degrees 35 Minutes 30 Seconds West, 99.04
Feet to a fence post as reported on the subdivision plat; thence North 84 Degrees 17 Minutes 59
Seconds West, passing through a eastern corner of Lot 2, reported as a fence post, for a total
distance of 295.46 Feet to the west line of Lot 2; thence with the west line of Lot 2 North 12
Degrees 37 Minutes 34 Seconds East, 174.00 Feet to the Point of Beginning and containing 0.94
acres more or less, as described by Ryan W. Beasley, Tennessee Registered Land Surveyor
2821, of L.I. Smith and Associates, 1100 Lebanon Pike, Suite 105, Nashville, TN 37211, on
March 30, 2018. Record bearings are based upon the plat of record in Plat Book 11, Page 46.

Augustino Lot 2 Portion 2B (Wilson Lane), Proposed Residential R-5 Zoning

Being a portion of Lot 2 of the J.W. Nash Subdivision of Robertson County, Tennessee,
conveyed to Bridgett Augustino by deed of record in Record Book 1652, Page 296, in the
Register’s office of Robertson County Tennessee, and being more particular described as
follows:

BEGINNING at the southwest corner of Lot 2 of the J.W. Nash Subdivision, of which the herein
described property is a portion of and reported as a fence post on the subdivision plat, and being
in the north line of Wilson Lane; runs thence with the east line of Lot 2 North 12 Degrees 37
Minutes 34 Seconds East, 169.04 Feet; thence leaving the west line of Lot 2 South 84 Degrees
17 Minutes 59 Seconds East, 92.01 Feet to an eastern corner of Lot 2, reported as a fence post on
the subdivision plat; thence with the east line of Lot 2 South 15 Degrees 46 Minutes 01 Seconds
West, 179.93 Feet to the southeast corner of Lot 2, reported as a fence post, in north line of
Wilson Lane; thence with Wilson Lane North 77 Degrees 42 Minutes 15 Seconds West, 81.48
Feet to the Point of Beginning and containing 0.35 acres more or less, as described by Ryan W.
Beasley, Tennessee Registered Land Surveyor 2821, of L.I. Smith and Associates, 1100 Lebanon
Pike, Suite 105, Nashville, TN 37211, on March 30, 2018. Record bearings are based upon the
J.W. Nash Subdivision of record in Plat Book 11, Page 46.

Ord 18-693
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CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
ORDINANCE 18-694

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR THE ELECTION OF TWO (2)
CITY COMMISSIONERS.

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the City of Millersville, Tennessee as
follows:

SECTION 1. Pursuant to the provision of T.C.A. 6-20-105, the Board of Commissioners of
the City of Millersville, Tennessee, does hereby direct the calling of a municipal election to
elect two Commissioners to serve four-year terms of office. The election shall be conducted
on the 6" day of November, 2018.

SECTION 2. The election shall be conducted in compliance with the election laws of the
State of Tennessee and under the direction and supervision of the Sumner County and
Robertson County Election Commissions.

SECTION 3. The City Manager is hereby directed and authorized to provide appropriate
assistance and facilities to the Election Commissions for the conduct of the election. The City
Manager is further authorized to expend such funds, as are necessary and proper, to pay the
cost of the election in accordance with the budgetary allocation therefore.

SECTION 4. This ordinance shall become effective upon the date of its final passage, the
public welfare requiring it.

Passed First Reading:
Passed Second Reading:
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
By:
Timothy F. Lassiter, Mayor
ATTEST:
By:

Holly L. Murphy, City Recorder



November General/City Elections
Tuesday, November 6, 2018

1* Day to Pick-Up Petitions---May 18, 2018
Qualifying Deadline---August 16, 2018-NOON
Withdrawal Deadline---August 23, 2018-NOON
Last Day ic Register to Vote---October 9, 2018
1# Day to Request Absentee Ballot---August 8, 2018
Last Day to Request Absentee Ballot---October 30, 2018

Barly Voting---October 17" thru November 1*

City Elections

Qualifying Deadline is NOON, August 16, 2018

Cities----Adams, Cedar Hill, Coopertown, Cross Plains,
Millersville, Orlinda, Portland, Ridgetop, Springfield
White House

Robertson County Election Commission
513 South Brown St.

Springfield, TN 37172

Phone: 615-384-5592 /Fax: 615-382-3122

Email: robertson.commission@tn.gov




CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEL
ORDINANCE 18-695

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2017-18 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET ORDINANCE
17-674 TO PROVIDE FOR THE PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT IN THE FIRE
DEPARTMENT AND ADJUST THE DEBT SERVICE RELATED TO THE FIRE
ENGINE LOAN.

WHEREAS, the Governing Body for the City of Millersville has identified necessary adjustments to the
budgeted amounts for expenses anticipated after the budget adoption; and

WHEREAS, an annual budget was previously passed and entered at large upon the records of this Board of
Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, adjustments are necessary to the Appropriation Ordinance to reflect the actual finances of the
City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF
MILLERSVILLE, that amendments to the Appropriations in the General Fund for Fiscal Year ending June
30, 2018, are being made to reflect a decrease of $34,433 in Debt Service for the principal portion of the Fire
Engine loan which is not due until next fiscal year, and an increase of $34,443 in the Fire Department
Expenditures for the purchase of a replacement vehicle with equipment for the Assistant Chief.

SECTION 1. The FY 2017-2018 Approved Budget is amended as follows:

The General Fund Appropriations for the Fire Department will increase from $726,938 to $761,381; and the
General Fund Appropriations for the Debt Service will decrease from $212,471 to $178,028. There will be
no change in the estimated Fund Balance in the General Fund.

SECTION 2. The Indebtedness Column in Section 4 of the Appropriations Ordinance will change to reflect
the correct principal amounts for Loan Agreements as follows: Principal (current yr) $123,565; Interest

(current yr) $20,223; and Principal Outstanding at 6/30/18 $897,881.

SECTION 3. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage, the public welfare
requiring it.

Passed First Reading;:

Public Hearing:

Passed Second Reading:

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

By:
Timothy Lassiter, Mayor
Attest:
Approved to Form and Legality:
By: By:
Holly Murphy, City Recorder Robert Wheeler, Jr., City Attorney

Ord 18-695



2017-18 Budget Amendment-Ordinance 18-695

GENERAL FUND

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Amount Projected Increase(+)
Account # Budget Line ltem Budgeted year-end Decrease (-)
10-422- ) ] )
T Debt Service-Fire Engine $45,531.00 $11,098.00 -$34,433.00
10-422- . . :
i Minor Equipment - Fire $10,000.00 $19,510.00 $9,510.00
10-422- ; ; :
- Machinery&Equip - Fire | $415,782.00 | $440,705.00 | $24,923.00
Total Operating Expenses: General Fund $471,313.00 | $471,313.00 $0.00
Expense - Revenue = Net Effect $0.00

Ord 18-695

$0.00

$0.00



Whereas,

Whereas,

Whereas,

ORDINANCE 17-674

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE,
ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET AND TAX RATE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING
JULY 1, 2017 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2018

Tennessee Code Annotated Title 9 Chapter 1 Section 116 requires that all funds of the
State of Tennessee and all its political subdivisions shall first be appropriated before
being expended and that only funds that are available shall be appropriated; and

the Municipal Budget Law of 1982 requires that the governing body of each municipality
adopt and operate under an annual budget ordinance presenting a financial plan with at
least the information required by that state statule, that no municipality may expend any
moneys regardless of the source except in accordance with a budget ordinance and that
the governing body shall not make any appropriation in excess of estimated available

funds; and

the governing body has published the annual operating budget and budgetary comparisons
of the proposed budget with the prior year (actual) and the current year (estimated) in a

newspaper of general circulation not less than ten (10) days prior to the meeting where the
governing body will consider final passage of the budget.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE AS

FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: That the governing body estimates anticipated revenues of the municipality from all sources

to be as follows:

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18
General Ruid Actual Estimated Proposed
Local Taxes $1,286,480 $1,395,488) $1,538,555
Licenses & Permits $27.200 $38,050 $40,500
Intergovernmental Revenue 638,253 654,557 632,900
Charges for Services 29,300 30,500 27,500
Fines and Forfeitures 256,327 373,500 351,500
Miscellaneous Revenue 60,678 152,476 29,600
Other Financing Sources - 390,782 -
Total Revenue $2,298,238 $3,035,353| $2,620,555
Fund Balance $1,588,945 $1,470,660 2,090,712
Total Available Funds $3,887,183 $4,506,013 $4,711,267
FY 2015-16 | FY 2016-17 | FY 2017-18 | amendmen
Sty Seckald.Fund Actual Estimated Proposed “’ZA"” g“’ 1;’2"’9
State Gas Tax Revenue $ 176,001 | $ 178,000 | $ 178,000
Miscellaneous Revenue $ 13,141 | § 8470 | $ 7,450
Transfer from General Fund $ 104,916 | § 27,883 | § 50,731 | +14,843=565,574
Total Revenue $ 294,058 | $ 214353 | $§ 236,181 $251,024
Fund Balance $ 549297 [ $ 298,252 | § 418,859
Total Available Funds $ 843355 | § 512,605 | % 655040 [ $§ 669,883
FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 | FY 2017-18
Drug Fund Actual Estimated Proposed
Drug Fines & Revenue $ 27751 | § 19,370 | $ 23,030
Total Revenue $ 27,751 | § 19370 | 23,030
Fund Balance 3 28,601 | § 24,583 | § 28.271
Total Available Funds $ 56,352 | § 43,953 [ $ 51,301

AMENDMENTH#5
5/15/18 Ord#18-695



SECTION 2:

. FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 | FY 2017-18

sSalid WasteHund Actual Estimated Proposed
Service Fees $ 412,164 | § 407,000 | $ 410,000
Miscellaneous Revenue $ 3,084 | $ 18,300 | $ 2,650
Total Revenue $ 415,248 | $ 425300 | $ 412,650
Fund Balance $ 464,894 | 433,237 | § 461,547
Total Available Funds $ 880,142 | $ 858,537 | $§ 874,197
. FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 | FY 2017-18

Stormwater Utility Fund Actual Estimated Proposed
Stormwater Ulilily Fees $ 71,041 | § 153,000 [ § 153,000
Miscellaneous Revenue $ 6% 5451 % 545
Total Revenue $ 71,047 | $ 153,545 | § 153,545
Fund Balance $ - $ 40,303 | § 37,399
Total Available Funds $ 71,047 | $ 193,848 | § 190,944
FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 | FY 2017-18

Bewer Fund Actual Estimated Proposed
Sewer User Fees $ 867,224 | § 905,000 [ $ 930,000
Sewer Tap Fees $ 16,775 | $ 25,000 | $ 25,000
Other Fees $ 41,444 | § 65,750 | $ 63,050
Non-Operating Revenue $ 4,769 | $ 8,100 | $ 8,500
Other Financing Sources $ - $ - $ 518,000
Total Revenue $ 930,212 | $ 1,003,850 [ § 1,544,550

That the governing body appropriates from these anticipated revenues and unexpended and
unencumbered funds as follows:

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 Amendment#1 nuendmeniily Amendment#5
General Fund Actual Estimated Proposed | #2417 0r1 17679 2"2""1‘::;"‘! 17 sisiis ord 18-695
General Government (incDev&Codes) [ $ 601,003 | $ 648,964 [ $ 813,963 .| +10.000-5823,963
Police Department (& City Court) $ 1,123291 | $ 1,241,786 | $ 1,235,502 | +25,000-51,260,502
Fire Department 8 272,629 | $ 225795 | § 726,938 +34,443=761381
Parks and Recreation $ 134,213 | $ 103,934 | $ 133,014
Debt Service $ 180,471 | $ 166,939 [ § 212471 34,443=178,028
Transfer to Street $ 104,916 | $ 27,883 | § 50,731 | +14,843=565,574
Capital b % $ =
Total Appropriations $ 2416523 | $ 2415301 | $ 3,172,619 | $ 3,212,462 | $3,222,462 | § 3,222,462
) FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 | FY 2017-18 | Amendment e i b :
State Stveet.Ald Fund Actual Estimated Proposed m‘\‘f” Ovd 1779 | 12317 0 o
Street Expenditures $ 161,002 | § 93,746 | $ 164,181 |+14,843=5179,024
Capital $ 384,101 | $ - $ 200,000 +40,000=5240,000 | +35,000=$275,000
Total Appropriations $ 545,103 | $ 93,746 | $ 364,181 | $ 379,024 | § 419,024 | § 454,024
5 Fund FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 | FY 2017-18
THg RAh Actual Estimated Proposed
Police Dept Drug Expenditures $ 31,769 | $ 15,682 | § 23,030
Total Appropriations $ 31,769 | $ 15682 | § 23,030




SECTION 3.

Solid Waste Fund FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 'Y 2017-18

Actual Estimated Proposed
Operating Expenditures 3 353,668 | $ 396,990 | § 409,612
Capital $ 93,237 | $ - § 150,000
Total Appropriations $ 446,905 | $ 396,990 | § 559,612
. FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 | FY 2017-18

Stormwater Utility Fund W] Estimated Proposed
Operating Expenditures $ 27,264 | § 141,449 [ $ 107,017
Capital $ 3480 | 15,000 [ § 10,000
Total Appropriations $ 30,744 [ $ 156,449 | § 117,017
FY 2015-16 IY 2016-17 | FY 2017-18

e e g Actual Estimated Proposed
Operating Expenses $ 791,657 | § 935357 | § 949,640
Non-Operating Expenses $ 1,444 | $ 24,495 | $ 25,000
Debt Service $ 160,530 | $ - § 23,971
Capital $ 559,162 | § 332,500 | § 704,000
Total Appropriations $ 1,512,793 [$§ 1,292352 |8 1,702,611

At the end of the 2018 fiscal year, the governing body estimates fund balances/deficits as follows:

General Fund

State Street Aid Fund
Drug Fund

Solid Waste Fund
Stormwater Fund
Sewer Fund

$ 1,538,648
$ 290,859
$ 28,271
$ 314,585
$ 73,927
$

Amendmenti1 8/24/17
Ord 17-679

Amendment#2 11/21/17
Ord 17-682

Amendment#3 2/20/18
Ord 17-688

Amendment#d
2/20/18 Ord 18-690

-39,843=51,498,805

-40,000=8$250,859

-10,000=51,488,805

-35,000=3$215,859

SECTION 4. That the governing body recognizes that the municipality has bonded and other indebtedness

SECTION 5.

SECTION 6.

as follows:

Bonded or Other Principal Interest Principal
Indebtedness (current yr) | (currentyr) |outstanding @
6/30/18
Bonds 3 - $ - b -
State Revolving Loan $ 22,695 | $ 1,276 | § 443,505
Loan Agreements $ 123,565 | § 20,223 | § 897.881
Capital Leases $ 31,984 | $ 2256 | $ 33,019
Other Debt $ - b - $ -
Total 3 178,244 | $ 23,755 | $ 1,374,405

No appropriation listed above may be exceeded without an amendment of the budget ordinance
as required by the Municipal Budget Law of 1982 T.C.A. Section 6-56-208. In addition, no
appropriation may be made in excess of available funds except to provide for an actual
emergency threatening the health, property or lives of the inhabitants of the municipality and
declared by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of at least a quorum of the governing body in accordance with
Section 6-56-205 of the Tennessee Code Annotated.

Money may be transferred from one appropriation to another in the same fund only by

appropriate ordinance by the governing body, subject to such limitations and procedures as it
may describe as allowed by Section 6-56-209 of the Tennessee Code Annotated. Any resulting
transfers shall be reported 1o the governing body at its next regular meeting and entered into the

minutes.




SECTION 7.

SECTION 8.

SECTION 9.

A detailed financial plan will be attached to this budget and become part of this budget
ordinance.

If for any reason a budget ordinance is not adopted prior to the beginning of the next fiscal year,
the appropriations in this budget ordinance shall become the appropriations for the next fiscal
until the adoption of the new budget ordinance in accordance with Section 6-56-210 of the
Tennessee Code Annotated, provided sufficient revenues are being collected to support the
continuing appropriations. Approval of the Director of the Division of Local Finance for a
continuation budget will be requested if any indebtedness is outstanding.

There is hereby levied a property tax of $1.00 per $100 of assessed value on all real and
personal property in Robertson County.

There is hereby levied a property tax of $1.00 per $100 of assessed value on all real and
personal property in Sumner County.

SECTION 10. All unencumbered balances of appropriations remaining at the end of the fiscal year shall

lapse and revert to the respective fund balances.

SECTION 11. This ordinance shall take effect on July 1, 2017, the public welfare requiring it.

Passed First Reading: May 16, 2017
Public Hearing: June 20, 2017
Passed Second and Final Reading: June 20, 2017

Attest:

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Timothy F. Lassiter
Timothy F. Lassiter, Mayor

Holly L. Murphy

Holly L.. Murphy, City Recorder

Approved as to Form and Legality:

Robert G. Wheeler, Jr.

Robert G. Wheeler, Jr., City Attorney



CITY OF MILLERSVILLE, TENNESSEE
ORDINANCE 18-696

AN ORDINANCE TO REZONE 7541 DARBY ROAD, SUMNER COUNTY
MAP 118, PARCEL 003.05, FROM RESIDENTIAL R-1 TO R-3 AND R-5;
AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, a parcel of land, identified as Sumner County Map 118 Parcel 003.05, is currently
zoned Residential District R-1; and

WHEREAS, the owner of this parcel requests the City rezone certain portions of this property to
Residential R-3 and R-5; and

WHEREAS, the proposed zoning designation is complimentary to other residential zoning
designations in the vicinity; and

WHEREAS, it is in the City of Millersville’s best interest to rezone this particular parcel to
allow for the highest and best use; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission voted by majority to recommend the rezoning of this
parcel to Residential R-3 and R-5 on May 8, 2018.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the City of
Millersville, Tennessee, that:

SECTION 1. The single parcel within the City of Millersville, Tennessee specifically identified
by the address of 7541 Darby Road, Sumner County Map 118 Parcel 003.05 is hereby rezoned
from Residential R-1 to Residential R-3 and R-5. (Legal Description attached hereto as part of
the Ordinance)

SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage, the public
welfare requiring it.

Passed First Reading:
Public Hearing:
Passed Second Reading:
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
By:
Timothy F. Lassiter, Mayor
Attest:
By: By:
Holly L. Murphy, City Recorder Robert G. Wheeler, Jr., City Attorney

Ord 18-696



Legal Descriptions with Proposed Zoning Designations of Certain Portions of Robertson County
Map 118 Parcel 003.05 aka 7541 Darby Road, Millersville, TN

Lot No 1 — Residential R-5

Beginning at an Iron Rod (Old), found in the South right-of-way line of Darby Road at the
northwest corner of Kimberly Stevens Tract, Deed of Record Book 1930, Page 830, R.O.5.C,,
TN runs thence along Stevens common line with Subject Tract, South 24 Degrees 48 Minutes 09
Seconds West, 98.89 Feet to an Iron Rod (old); Thence continuing with the Stevens North line,
North 56 Degrees 17 Minutes 14 Seconds West, 156.31 Feet to an Iron Rod (old); Thence
leaving Stevens and following a new line North 38 Degrees 09 Minutes 43 Seconds East, 62.46
Feet to a point on the South right-of-way line of Darby Road; thence along said right-of-way line
South 70 Degrees 52 Minutes 14 Seconds East, 190.68 Feet to the point of beginning, said Lot
No. 1 contains 11,789 Square Feet or 0.27 Acres.

Lot No 2 — Residential R-3

Beginning at the northwest corner of subject property at the northeast corner of the Jerry M. and
Daisy M. Copeland Tract of record in Book 505, Page 156, R.0.8.C., TN; Thence, South 58
Degrees 45 Minutes 46 Seconds West, 821.25 Feet to a point on the easterly boundary of the
property conveyed to Kenneth D. Carter of record in Deed Book 480, Page 753, R.0.5.C., TN,
also being the southwest corner of said Copeland property; Thence following the easterly
boundary of said Carter property, South 06 Degrees 17 Minutes 56 Seconds West, 216.48 Feet to
a point, being the northwest corner of the property conveyed to Van N. and Sarah E. McCormack
of record in Deed Book 3475, Page 772, R.0.S.C., TN; Thence, South 83 Degrees 29 Minutes 35
Seconds West, 241.48 Feet to a point; Thence following a new line North 00 Degrees 09 Minutes
18 Seconds East, 254.75 Feet to a point; Thence with a curve to the left having a radius of 60.00
Feet and an arc length of 46.55 Feet to a point; Thence North 59 Degrees 51 Minutes 16 Seconds
Fast, 60.00 Feet to a point on the westerly boundary of the property conveyed to Kimberly
Stevens of record in Deed Book 1930, Page 830, R.0.S.C., TN; Thence North 30 Degrees 08
Minutes 44 Seconds East, 70.19 Feet to a point, being the northwest corner of said Stevens
property; Thence, following the southerly boundary of said Stevens property North 59 Degrees
51 Minutes 16 Seconds East, 500.00 Feet to an Iron Rod (old); Thence with a new line North 38
Degrees 09 Minutes 43 Seconds East, 62.46 to a point on the southerly right-of-way of Darby
Road; Thence, following the southerly right-of-way of Darby Road North 70 Degrees 52
Minutes 14 Seconds West, 50.00 Feet to the Point of Beginning, said Lot No. 2 continuing
105,785 Square Feet or 2.43 Acres.

Lot No 3 — Residential R-3

Beginning at the common front corner of Lots No 2 and 3 on the Ingress/Egress access easement
providing access to Lots No 2 and 3; Thence with said Ingress/Egress access easement along a
curve, curving to the left with a Radius of 60 Feet and an Arc Length of 46.55 Feet to a point;
Thence North 59 Degrees 51 Minutes 16 Seconds East, 60.00 Feet to a point in the West line of
said Stevens Tract of record in Record Book 1930, Page 830, R.O.S.C., TN; Thence along
Steven’s common line South 30 Degrees 08 Minutes 44 Seconds East approximately 265.8 Feet
to a point; thence North 66 Degrees 51 Minutes 16 Seconds East, 400.23 Feet to a point; thence
South 06 Degrees 30 Minutes 25 Seconds West, 285.07 Feet to a point; Thence North 83
Degrees 29 Minutes 35 Seconds West, 570.41 Feet to a point in the rear line of Lot No. 2;
Thence along the common line between Lot No. 2 and the herein lot being described North 00
Degrees 09 Minutes 18 Seconds East, 254.75 Feet to the Point of Beginning and containing
116,721 Square Feet or 2.68 Acres.

Ord 18-696



POSITION TITLE: BUILDING & CODES OFFICIAL

CLASSIFICATION: Building & Codes Enforcement Department
REPORTS TO: City Manager

FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt

PAY GRADE: ($40,000 - $45,000)

SUMMARY:

Performs technical work in the review of building permit applications, building plans and the
inspection of all phases of construction for compliance with adopted International Building Codes,
City Ordinances, and other regulatory requirements; Oversight responsibility of Municipal Codes
Enforcement; Performs related work as required. Work is performed in coordination with the Fire
Chief, City Planner, Public Works Director and City Engineer under the regular supervision of the City
Manager.

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF WORK.:

An employee in this class performs technical and skilled work to complex inspections that ensure the
uniform building, plumbing, and mechanical codes and standards are met for all construction activities
in the City. This employee may also inspect for compliance with the adopted zoning ordinances and
the municipal code, and state & federal regulations including stormwater and flood plain regulations.
Supervises and directs Building Inspectors and Codes Enforcement Officers as needed.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS OF WORK:

Receives, reviews, and processes building permit and other related applications.

Receives and reviews architectural plans, construction plans, permits, and specifications for conformity with
regulatory codes.

Issues or denies building permits and other permits.

Schedules and performs field inspections of new construction, additions, remodeling and demolition of
residential, commercial and industrial buildings. Determines that building, plumbing, mechanical systems,
and site improvements, etc., conform to applicable codes, ordinances, specifications, and approved
construction plans. Documents all inspections. Approves or denies certificates of occupancy or use.

Enforces building and permitting related codes and ordinances.

Performs stormwater inspections and investigations on construction sites and other properties as needed.
Assists various city staff and consultants with stormwater management, enforcement, and reporting.

Issues warnings, notices of violation, citations, and stop work orders as required.
Inputs, maintains, and tracks all permit and other appropriate records, data, and information into computer

software programs and system files in addition to paper files. Performs other related administrative activities
as needed.



Directs and assists the Codes Enforcement Officer with City Code of Ordinances and City, State, and Federal
Stormwater Regulations enforcement.

Interacts with and provides information and technical assistance to property owners, builders, contractors and
others concerning permitting and code requirements. Establishes and maintains effective working

relationships with the general public and employees.

Testifies to or makes reports about building department actions and activities in meetings and hearings as
necded.

Prepares daily and monthly activity reports.
Performs related tasks as required.

ADDITIONAL EXAMPLES OF WORK PERFORMED

Other duties as assigned.

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES:

Knowledge of residential and non-residential codes, laws, and ordinances relating to the installation and
systems of all the various specialty areas within Inspections (i.e., Building, Plumbing, Mechanical, and
Plans Review).

Knowledge of the materials, methods, and practices used in installing, repairing, and maintaining systems
for residential, commercial, and industrial projects.

Ability to read, interpret, apply, and explain construction plans, blueprints, specifications, and building
codes; make mathematical calculations rapidly and accurately; use word processing and other related
computer software programs.

Knowledge of and ability to enforce residential and non-residential codes and regulations firmly, tactfully,
and impartially.

Ability to establish and maintain effective professional relationships with those contacted in the course of
work as well as coworkers; work independently, organize and prioritize work.

Ability to communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing with the general public; exercise
good judgment in evaluating situations and making decisions; exercise initiative and make
recommendations to management; communicate effectively with individuals from various socioeconomic,
ethnic and cultural diverse backgrounds.

Ability to pass reasonable fitness and physical standards to safely perform work, if required, as determined
by city physician; vision and hearing, normal or corrected sufficient to read, write, distinguish colors, and
safely operate tools and equipment used in work.

Possess dexterity and fitness to sufficiently and safely operate, utilize and maintain tools and equipment
used in worl;



Have the ability to lift and carry about 50 pounds, though greater weights may, at sometimes be lifted,
carried and/or placed; dexterity and fitness to grasp, crawl, crouch, bend, stoop, climb, stretch, walk, and
otherwise perform physical functions of the assignment.

WORK ENVIRONMENT:

Work environment is generally agreeable with good working conditions but may be dirty or involve
exposure to some other disagreeable element. Work is conducted in a normal office setting, in a vehicle, and
at construction and other outdoor sites and residential/commercial locations. Noise level is moderate to loud,
depending upon employee's location. Inspection sites can be dirty and cluttered with tools, construction
material, and debris. An employee may be exposed to moving mechanical parts and typical hazards
encountered when operating a vehicle. Employee may occasionally be exposed to airborne particles and
fumes. Employee will frequently be exposed to building and construction activity. An employee will be
exposed various weather conditions that occur within the locality.

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

High School diploma or G.E.D. is required.
Possession of a Class D Tennessee State Driver's License with a good driving record.

Possession of a State of Tennessee Residential Building, Residential Mechanical Inspector and Residential
Plumbing Inspector Certifications.

Possession of or the ability to obtain State of Tennessee Commercial Building Inspector, Commercial
Mechanical Inspector and Commercial Plumbing Inspector Certifications within one (1) year of hire.

Possession of a State of Tennessee Stormwater EPSC Level I Inspector Certification or the ability to obtain
the certification within six (6) months.

A minimum of 2 (two) years of experience in general building construction with knowledge of the
mechanical and plumbing trades.

Ability to use Windows based computers and software. Knowledge of iWorQ permitting software a plus.

One to three years' experience as an inspector or related experience is preferred.

[ acknowledge that I have read the foregoing and understand its content.

Employee Signature Date

Print Employee Name City Manager or Supervisor Signature



